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About Us
Volleyball Australia is a National Olympic
sporting organisation that is committed to
being a world leader in our sport. Our role is
to inspire the love of volleyball by fostering
participation and sporting excellence for the
benefit of all.

World leader
We deliver world class team
performances, supported by
world class management and
sport delivery infrastructure.
We are recognised by
our stakeholders as a
leading national federation,
demonstrated by leadership
presence at OZVA, AVC,
FIVB, and as a member of the
Olympic Family.

Participation and
sporting excellence
We inspire participation in
volleyball pathways through
our members, from grassroots
and school children to aspiring
Olympians. We coordinate
national participation
activities, and we invest to
deliver technical infrastructure
to grow the capacity and
quality of our sport.

Advocating a culture of respect and
personal health through the attributes
of volleyball, our role models and our
national teams, The Volleyroos.
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Benefit of all
We are contributing to
the social fabric and the
good health of a sporting
nation through Volleyball.
A collaborative, culturally
inclusive, non contact,
gender equal sport, which
contributes to the health
and wellbeing of society.

2020/21 highlights

SILVER (W) Tokyo Olympic Games
Mariafe Artacho / Taliqua Clancy

GOLD (W) FIVB Cancun 4* #3
Mariafe Artacho / Taliqua Clancy

GOLD (M) AVC Continetal Cup Olympic Qualifier
Christopher McHugh-Damien Schumann – 1st
Max Guehrer-Zachery Schubert

Successful Australian Beach Volleyball Tour

Conducted the first ever Beach Volleyball
Schools Cup, with 97 teams from 23 Schools
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Volleyball Australia Board

CRAIG CARRACHER
PRESIDENT (2011, 2013)
(LLB, Syd, University Medal;
BCL, Oxon, 1st Class Hons)

Craig re-joined the Board of Volleyball Australia in 2011 as Vice President and was
appointed President in July 2013. From 1996 until the Sydney 2000 Olympic Games
Craig was a director and CEO of Volleyball Australia on sabbatical from his law career.
Craig is Zonal Executive Vice President of Asian Volleyball Confederation, the Chair of
the AVC Asian Beach Volleyball Committee and a member of the FIVB Beach Volleyball
Council. Craig was a director of the FIVB from 2013-2016. In 2015 Craig was nominated
and subsequently elected to the Board of the Australian Olympic Committee and Chairs
the Culture, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and also serves on the board
of the Australian Olympic Foundation and its Investment Advisory Committee. Craig is
a founder and Executive Chair of Scape Australia, the largest owner operator of rental
accommodation nationally. Craig previously pursued an investment and legal career
working in Asia as managing partner of a leading Australian law firm and the Australian
Packer family’s private investment group, Consolidated Press Holdings (CPH) and its
various investments. Craig has studied and worked in the US, Scandinavia, the UK and in
north and south-eastern Asia and has concentrated his investment and business interests
across the Asian markets. Craig has been an active participant in beach volleyball since the
1980s competing on local, state and national tours.

Malcolm is an experienced CEO & CFO with over 20 years executive and board experience
in public and private companies. With an accounting background in business services
and audit he brings to the Board a wealth of not-for-profit-governance and financial
experience. He has served as Chairman on a number of State and National Committees for
CPA Australia including their Environmental, Social and Governance Centre of Excellence
providing CPA Australia and its 180,000 members with advice and direction on current
environmental, corporate social responsibility and corporate governance issues. He also
currently serves on the Boards of a number of not-for-profit organisations. Malcolm loves
Volleyball, having played in the U20’s for Australia in the Pac Rim Tournament in 1978.
MALCOLM BORGEAUD
VICE PRESIDENT (2012)
B Com (with Distinction)
FCPA MAICD

Anita has extensive experience of multi-sport events through involvement at both event,
planning and bidding stages of previous Olympics in Beijing and Sydney and the bid stages
of London and Rio. This consultative work has included work on both the Olympics and
Paralympics and has been crucial to the department planning, especially in the areas of
sport from scheduling, through to entries, sport production, organisational integration
and results. She is herself an Olympian. Anita is currently Head of Sport – Gold Coast 2018
Commonwealth Games Corporation.

ANITA PALM
VICE PRESIDENT (2013)
Bachelor of Human Movement,
Education Major

KERRI POTTHARST
DIRECTOR (2015)
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Kerri Pottharst is one of Australia’s most well known and well-loved athletes – a triple
Olympian with two Olympic medals. Kerri wore the Green and Gold for Australia for an
incredible 22 years! She competed with the Indoor National Team for 10 years and then on
the World Tour of Beach Volleyball until her retirement in 2005. She is one of our sports
most decorated players. She has been inducted into the the International Volleyball Hall
of Fame, been awarded Team of the Decade by the FIVB and is also a member of the
Australian Sports Hall of Fame. Kerri has written a book about her journey in Volleyball
– The Business of Being an Athlete – and uses this to help athletes all over the world.
Since retiring, Kerri now divides her time between coaching and mentoring elite-level
athletes, inspiring people from all walks of life to achieve excellence through her keynote
presentations and motivational workshops and also gives her time freely to support many
different charities each year. Kerri is passionate about Health and Wellness and believes
that sport is an essential ingredient in the lives of healthy kids and adults.

Volleyball Australia | Annual Report

Ying was a member of the Chinese women’s team that won gold at the 1984 Los Angeles
Olympics, and then won bronze four years later in Seoul. She was also a member of the
1982 and 1986 Chinese World Championship teams, and the team which won the 1985
World Cup. Ying has been living in Adelaide in recent years, and Volleyball Australia
President Craig Carracher said it was a major boost for volleyball to have someone with
Ying’s experience and knowledge to help guide the sport into the future.

JIANG YING
DIRECTOR (2016)

Grant is a senior partner in the clients and industries group in Deloitte and in this role he
oversees a number of the major accounts of the firm. He has worked for over 30 years in
Australia and the UK and has extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and capital
raisings. Grant has previously been on the board of Caulfield South Primary School in
Victoria for 10 years and also President of the basketball committee at Caulfield Grammar
for 5 years. Prior to joining the VA Board he was on the Board of Volleyball Victoria.
Grant joined the VA board in November 2018.

GRANT HYDE
DIRECTOR (2018)

KIM BRADEY
DIRECTOR (2019)
B.Sc(Ma), LL.B, GDLP

Kim has been actively involved in volleyball since a teenager, including playing, coaching
and umpiring in South Australia and Victoria. Outside of volleyball, Kim practices as a
barrister in insurance and personal injuries law at the Victorian Bar, having previously
been a partner of a national law firm. She sits on the Workcover Magistrates’ Court Users
Group, and is a director of the Essoign Club Limited, a club serving the judiciary and the
Victorian Bar, providing strategic and operational advice to ensure the continued vibrancy
of the Essoign’s offerings to its members. She has also had extensive experience in the
administration of not-for-profit bodies, having served as a director of the Australian
Insurance Law Association for two decades and been the secretary of the Malvern
Marlins Masters Swimming Club for five years. She also sits on two Law Council of
Australia committees, as well as on the Victorian Bar’s Compensation Law Bar Association
committee. Kim joined the VA board in November 2019.
Les Young has over 30 years’ experience providing policy, governance and technical
leadership and advice across a broad range of commercial, government and not-for-profit
industry sectors with a focus in homeland security and Olympic sporting organisations.
Les has led and advised numerous multi-billion-dollar complex capability development
programs throughout Australia and North America. Les’ core strength is building and
leading high performing teams that produce results and is a passionate volunteer sports
administrator and governor. He has coached volleyball at state and national representative
levels for over 20 years. Les joined the VA board in November 2020.

LES YOUNG
DIRECTOR (2020)

ANDREW DEE
SECRETARY (2018)
(EX OFICIO)

Andrew commenced in the role of CEO in January 2018 with over 30 years of
executive level leadership and performance management experience in the sports
industry. Andrew was CEO of Rowing Australia Ltd. for over a decade and has held
senior management positions at the Australian Institute of Sport and completed
complex high-performance reviews for Cricket Australia and the Australian Rugby
League as an independent consultant. In addition to his Bachelor’s Degree in
Sports Science, Andrew has completed international executive management
programs at the London Business School and INSEAD. Andrew is currently
President of the ACT Olympic Council and Executive Chairman/co-founder of DCON
Partners, a company specialising in intelligence and investigation operations

VA Chief Executive Officer
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President’s Report
CRAIG CARRACHER

This report celebrates our many
successes throughout the year across
participation where we explore the
possibilities of light volley, pathways
with our continued focus on systemic
alignment and growing financial stability
thanks to vigilant attention to detail and
planning.

The sight of empty seats in the 12,000 seat Olympic
stadium while our Beach Volleyball men’s and women’s
teams competed in the delayed Tokyo 2021 Olympics
was surreal. While this XXXII Olympiad provided the
world with a celebration of human spirit that was much
needed in all the isolation and despair of the Global
COVID 19 pandemic, it also provided us in Australian
Volleyball with the heroic journey of Damien Schumann/
Chris McHugh and the shining silver medal of Taliqua
Clancy and Mariafe Artacho del Solar. Congratulations
to the athletes, the team and families behind them
for their magnificent performances and navigating
the myriad of cross border COVID regulations and
tournament cancellations.
The Tokyo Games provided a rare joy to share with
Australians our spectacular global game thanks to an
Olympic spike in media profile with Volleyball on the
front page and our athletes on morning TV. It has also
given us an amplified opportunity to garner support
for volleyball at all levels of Government, business, the
media and community.
Volleyball has experienced greater profile this year not
only in the media. My various representative roles with
the Australian Olympic Committee, Asian Volleyball
Confederation, International Volleyball Federation
(FIVB) along with other administrative Australian
representatives such as Louise Bawden (FIVB athletes
commission), Anita Palm (Asian Sports Events Council)
are important recognitions of Australian Volleyball and
our ability to contribute to the broader volleyball and
sporting community. We will continue to engage with
our region and participate internationally not only on the
court but at a Governance level.
The announcement of Brisbane as the host city of the
Olympic Games in 2032 is momentous for volleyball
and sport in Australia. We will have 28 Olympians
with teams automatically qualified for the indoor men’s
and women’s tournaments, along with beachvolleyball
men’s and women’s teams. This alone creates amazing
opportunity. However, combined with a national
systems focus on legacy, developing sport capability and
capacity to deliver the Games, peak high performance
outcomes and a 10 year lead time we are already in the
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slip stream. It is our challenge to define our own legacy
and dedicate resources in achieving our vision.
This report celebrates our many successes throughout
the year across participation where we explore
the possibilities of light volley, pathways with our
continued focus on systemic alignment and growing
financial stability thanks to vigilant attention to detail
and planning. It also reports the results of the 20-21
Beach Volleyball National Tour and the first ever Beach
Volleyball Schools Cup; however, due to COVID 19 all
indoor leagues or championships were cancelled. Sadly,
it was a lost year for national indoor volleyball events.
All national indoor women’s international tournaments
were cancelled. Miraculously we were able to field a
very young Volleyroos men indoor team to participate
in a modified “bubble” VNL hosted in Italy and later the
Asian Championships. Their results reflected their youth
and lack of preparation and show the building phase we
must now enter in the coming years.
I’d like to acknowledge the members of the Volleyball
Australia Board who continue to support me and thank
them for the work they do on various VA committees
and with staff. I also want to thank the State and
Territory Board Members and Executives for their
continued co-operative and constructive dialogue as
we move beyond the prototype of the governance
framework through “We Are Volleyball” from 2016-2020.
This year, together, we have dedicated considerable
time and effort in contributing to the development of
our Strategic Plan where we have ensured that our
governance structure is right to set and deliver shared
priorities. It has been a year of zoom meetings and
while I am grateful for the technology that keeps us
connected, I look forward to the time we can enjoy each
other’s company again.
This year has been very difficult on our staff with the
uncertainty of COVID 19 and various lockdowns creating
chaos for our events and programs. The stress from
time spent planning events only to have them cancelled
or postponed along with quarantine periods endured
and time away from family and friends along with the
isolation of lockdowns has been significant. Thank you
to our CEO, Andrew Dee for your leadership, along

with your executive team as you have all navigated this
unprecedented period. I am very grateful for your support
along with the dedication and commitment of the staff.
Finally, I would like to thank our Patron, Gina Rinehart for
her ongoing support. Her financial contribution through
the Georgina Hope Foundation is integral to the success of
our high-performance athletes and we greatly appreciate
her recognition of volleyball and the dedication of our
young athletes. As we impatiently come out of COVID,
with all the inherent frustrations that will bring, it is our
shared ambitions, aspirations and goals that will drive
us forward together. I have no doubt that we are better
placed now than we have been at any time in the past
two decades to reset our sport. It is a dawn of a new era
propelled by the vision of Brisbane 2032.
CRAIG CARRACHER
PRESIDENT
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CEO’s Report
ANDREW DEE

Perhaps the most satisfying moment
of the year was the sense of pride at
the remarkable achievement of the
VA event and participation staff to
navigate border closures and conduct
four Australian Beach Volleyball Tour
events.
It is a pleasure to present my fourth report as CEO of
Volleyball Australia.
Conducting business during the reporting period has
been like navigating through “the great unknown” in a
year that will long be remembered for doing so much
work and having so little to show for it. While the team
at VA rallied to ensure every possible opportunity was
explored to conduct national programs and events,
all too often state border restrictions and local COVID
related circumstances confounded even our most
cautious plans.
Perhaps the most satisfying moment of the year was
the sense of pride at the remarkable achievement of
the VA event and participation staff to navigate border
closures and conduct four Australian Beach Volleyball
Tour events over the summer in four different States, and
to have the finals of three events broadcast live on SBS
for all to see. These events attracted record entries and
delivered impressive TV viewer numbers, demonstrating
that there is space for our sport in Australia’s crowded
sports market.
Under the new leadership of Craig Marshall, the high
performance team prepared diligently and tirelessly
for the delayed Tokyo Olympic Games, and in doing so
delivered the first men’s beach volleyball team to qualify
for an Olympic Games in 13 years and a spectacular
Silver Medal for Mariafe and Taliqua, Australia’s first
podium since 2000.

communications plan.
It was a satisfying year from a financial perspective that
resulted in a surplus of $253,812 and was capped off by
securing extensions to event partnership agreements
with the Queensland government and City of Gold
Coast for Schools Cup, Beach Schools Cup, Junior
Beach Championships, and the Beach Tour event at
Coolangatta Beach. As part of a strategy to raise nongovernment funds and diversify its revenue streams,
VA engaged a sponsorship procurement and servicing
agency with some promising early signs.
In the process of settling its strategy for Volleyball
in Australia, VA and its stakeholders conducted an
extensive period of consultation that resulted in a
plan for the sport that will take it into the future with
clarity and a genuine sense of collaboration. Within the
framework of “Cascading Choices” and deciding “Where
We Want to Win”, the 2020 stakeholders meeting
following the AGM collectively considered and resolved
to focus on the following strategic themes and priority
actions in the period from 2020 - 2024. The initiatives
were assigned to one of 2 categories:
• Those to be actioned in collaboration between VA
and its stakeholders
• Those to be actioned by VA independently

1. High Performance with Improved Pathways for
Athletes

Off the court, the VA team spent considerable time
drafting, developing and planning for when things
begin to turn the corner towards a post pandemic
environment.

a. Collaboration Priority Initiative:

After considerable research and development, the event
team identified and began testing an event management
platform that will revolutionise our event operations
and improve the participant experience. Speaking of
revolutionising, again after months of investigation,
the team settled on the appropriately named
RevolutioniseSPORT platform to manage program
related participant data in addition to launching a new
education platform to conduct VA’s coach and official
education programs

b. VA Priority Initiative:

In the corporate area we engaged in the governance
enhancement program initiated by Sport Australia,
implemented a new risk management assessment
process, and engaged a communications company
to plan and deliver a VA and nationally aligned
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i. Develop integrated talent pathway programs
in states that link with the AVA and involve
Programs, Institutes/Academies
i. Plan and implement a program of national
talent ID and development camps within and in
collaboration with each State

2. Increasing opportunities for Australian
population to play volleyball
a. Collaboration Priority Initiative:
i. Develop a collaborative model to provide
support and development for clubs to become
sustainable and growi.
b. VA Priority Initiative:
i. Complete the redesign, development, and
activation of national education programs for

coaches and officials

3. Recognition and respect through agreed unity of
purpose
a. Collaboration Priority Initiative 1:
i. To develop a plan to invest in dedicated
resources to deliver effective marketing
communications and effective commercial
outcomes
b. Collaboration Priority Initiative 2:
i. Identify projects and activities that lend
themselves to national collaboration such as
communications and financial services
c. VA Priority Initiative:
i. Secure the financial independence and
sustainability of Volleyball Australia
While there are many more activities and operational
obligations required by VA and its member associations,
these are the areas of priority that will be our collective
focus for the next three years and I look forward to
reporting on our progress in subsequent reports.

gratitude for their support.
There is no more dynamic and inspirational Chair of a
national sport than Craig Carracher and we are fortunate
that he leads a board of such impressive and supportive
Directors. It is also fortuitous that Craig’s presence
in domestic sport and world volleyball continues to
grow, and I acknowledge his appointment to the
Asian Volleyball Confederation and FIVB Boards of
administration, together with his role as a Director of the
Australian Olympic Committee.
Finally, I extend our most sincere thanks to the friends
of volleyball in all its forms. In particular, I would like to
thank John Coates and Matt Carroll and their team at
the Australian Olympic Committee, Ben Houston and
Craig Phillips at Commonwealth Games Australia, Mrs
Gina Rinehart and the Hancock Prospecting team, and
the Australian Institute of Sport and Sport Australia
personnel.
ANDREW DEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In closing, it is important to recognise the support and
dedication of the VA Board, staff, athletes, officials and
volunteers.
In a year that created so many challenges, VA’s senior
management team of Craig Marshall, Clare Phillips, Phil
Borgeaud, Phil Muller, Paul Smith, and Vasanta Iyer were
unwavering in their optimism and dedication to their
respective roles. They have my utmost respect and
Volleyball Australia | Annual Report
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Volleyball Australia Executive Team

ANDREW DEE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Andrew commenced in the role of CEO in January 2018 with over 30 years of executive
level leadership and performance management experience in the sports industry.
Andrew was CEO of Rowing Australia Ltd. for over a decade and has held senior
management positions at the Australian Institute of Sport and completed complex
high-performance reviews for Cricket Australia and the Australian Rugby League as an
independent consultant. In addition to his Bachelor’s Degree in Sports Science, Andrew
has completed international executive management programs at the London Business
School and INSEAD. Andrew is currently President of the ACT Olympic Council and
Executive Chairman/co-founder of DCON Partners, a company specialising in intelligence
and investigation operations.
Clare has over 30 years’ experience in financial and budget management, including over
17 years in National Sporting Organisations. She joined Volleyball Australia in April 2018
following 14 years as Finance Manager at Rowing Australia and, before that, 3 years in
Swimming Australia. Prior to this, Clare had a successful 13 year career in the Australian
Public Service working in budgets and financial management.

CLARE PHILLIPS
FINANCE MANAGER

PHIL MULLER
EVENTS DIRECTOR

Phil is a previous Vice-President of Volleyball Australia and transitioned to the Executive
Team in August 2015. After his secondment to the 2018 Gold Coast Commonwealth
Games as the Beach Volleyball Competition Manager, he has returned to VA in the role
of Events Director. He has retired from Education Queensland as the Executive Officer
for Queensland School Sport. Phil has a long history with volleyball, spanning some 34
years, as a player, coach and administrator. The highlight being appointed by SOCOG as
Deputy Competition Manager for Volleyball at the Sydney 2000 Olympics and Competition
Manager for Sitting Volleyball at the Sydney 2000 Paralympics.

Craig ‘Frog’ Marshall has a long history with Volleyball Australia, being part of the
national team programs for over two decades. Craig has an impressive depth of coaching
experience as an international beach volleyball coach at four Olympic Games, ten World
Championships and on the FIVB Beach Volleyball World Tour for 19 consecutive years.
Craig’s current past role was as the Head Coach of VA’s Queensland Academy of Sport’s
(QAS) very successful development program, and he joined Volleyball Australia as the High
Performance Director in November 2020.
CRAIG MARSHALL
HIGH PERFORMANCE
DIRECTOR
Paul holds the role of National Pathways Manager for Volleyball Australia. This role includes
technical direction of the Australian Volleyball Academy, the Junior Development Program,
and continuing with the roll out of the integration of beach volleyball across the country.
Paul has been an athlete at club, state, national and international levels, as well as coaching
at 3 Olympic Games in beach volleyball (1996-2004).

PAUL SMITH
NATIONAL PATHWAYS
MANAGER
Vasanta joined Volleyball Australia in January 2020 as High-Performance Operations
Manager. She is responsible for leading the operations of the Australian Volleyball
Academy Volleyball Australia’s national high-performance programs including the senior
beach, men’s, and women’s programs. Vasanta brings excellent experience of developing
elite athletes holistically in a world sport, and prior to joining VA, she held the role of
General Manager at Drapac Cycling, a UCI Continental Cycling team for 3 years.
VASANTA IYER
HIGH PERFORMANCE
OPERATIONS MANAGER
11
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Volleyball Australia
Commissions and Committees
STATE EXECUTIVE COMMISSION

VOLLEYBALL AUSTRALIA REFEREE COMMITTEE

Nic Kaiser

VACT

George Chalhoub

Baz Wedmaier

VNSW

Peter Bawhey

Luke Seib

VNT

Dean Turner

Gary O’Donnell

VQ

Jaek Passier

Anne-Marie McAinsh

VSA

Stephen Ibbott

VTI

Geoff Rietschel

VVI

Robyn Kuhl

VWA

AUSTRALIAN BEACH VOLLEYBALL
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Anita Palm
Darren Grimsey

PRESIDENT’S COMMISSION

Greg Jury

Tim Hubbard

VACT

Joey Yigit

Lucy Coggan

VNSW

Louise Bawden

Luke Seib

VNT

Baz Wedmaier

Boris Georgieff

VQ

Trent Clarke

Craig Watson

VSA

Nathan McLeod

Stephen Ibbott

VTI

Simon Naismith

Paul Freckleton

VVI

Liam Young

Ian Phipps

VWA

Alistair Roberts
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CFO’s Financial Report
CLARE PHILLIPS

Despite the challenging
circumstances, Volleyball Australia
was able to deliver results across
the many areas of the sport in
which it operates.

As was the case around the world,
in 2020/21 the COVID-19 pandemic
continued to challenge the Australian
sports sector in material ways.
Despite the challenging circumstances,
Volleyball Australia was able to deliver
results across the many areas of the sport
in which it operates and the organisation
reported a profit of $253k for the 2020/21
financial year, with a commensurate
improvement in our net asset position.
The financial reality of reduced income
generating activity meant that support
from our Funding Partners was crucial,
and this support was unwavering
with $3.9mill being received in grant
funding from Sport Australia and State
Governments and $697k in Federal
Government subsidies, including
JobKeeper and Cash Boost.
Once again, VA’s major corporate
partner, Hancock Prospecting, provided
financial and moral support that was
invaluable and underpinned many
of the activities we were able to
deliver for our athletes and coaches.
In an ongoing demonstration of
her generosity, Mrs Rinehart has
agreed to continue as Volleyball
Australia’s Patron through to 2024.
The assistance mentioned above was
critical in allowing VA to continue to
deliver on its objectives and in positioning
the organisation to react to the evolving
situation that we continue to face.
As evidenced in the 2021 Financial Report,
VA’s total revenue for the year was
$823k lower than the previous reporting
period. As such, it was necessary to
reduce our expense base accordingly.
For the first two months of the year,
VA staff continued to perform their
duties at reduced pay – an extraordinary
sacrifice which, in total, extended
for almost 6 months during 2020.
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2019/2020

2018/2019

Total Revenue

$6,407,232

$7,230,292

Total Expenses

$6,153,420

$7,010,587

$253,812

$219,705

$1,310,550

$1,253,285

$414,757

$364,278

TOTAL ASSETS

$1,725,307

$1,617,563

Total Current Liabilities

$2,042,138

$2,270,555

$117,593

$35,244

$2,159,731

$2,305,799

$(434,424)

$(688,236)

Statement of Comparative Income

Total comprehensive income
attributable to members of the entity

Statement of Financial Position
Total Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY

Volleyball Australia Key Management Personnel
Role - Executive Team members
or equivalent

Remuneration
($’000)

Chief Executive Officer

150-200

National Performance Director

100-150

National Pathways Manager

<100

Director, Community Engagement

<100

Finance and Administration Manager

<100

Sadly, we were unable to deliver any indoor
events across the reporting period, with
repercussions felt through all aspects of
the business. A relatively brief interlude
in the pandemic related lockdowns across
the country allowed us to conduct the
Australian Beach Volleyball Tour with events
across 4 states. This would not have been
possible without the generous financial
support provided by our event partners,
sponsors and Local and State Governments.
In addition to the wonderful support
mentioned above, I would like to thank
Sport Australia and the Australian
Institute of Sport for their financial
investment in Volleyball in Australia, and
all the National Sporting Organisations
who have come together to help each
other through this difficult time with
support, advice and unprecedented
sharing of knowledge and expertise.
As always, the Volleyball Australia Board
of Directors, Audit and Risk Committee
and Executive Team have worked tirelessly
to achieve our objectives, and our State
Associations have continued to engage
proactively to provide guidance and
perspective, and I thank all involved.
A conservative budget has been
framed for the coming 12 months as
we continue to navigate the changing
environment. Once again, our focus will
be on emerging from these challenging
times with a stronger, financially secure
organisation that continues to deliver
a quality product to our community.
The full audited financial report for the
year ended 30 June 2021 is available
online at www.volleyballaustralia.org.au

CLAIRE PHILLIPS
MANAGER, FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION
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Message from Sport Australia
The unprecedented challenge of the
global COVID-19 pandemic since 2020
has required incredible resilience as a
society and within our sport sector
Like so many Australians, sport has been a cornerstone
of my life and has shaped me in ways I could never
have imagined. I am passionate in my belief in sport’s
unrivalled ability to unite, inspire, and build healthier,
stronger communities and I am committed to ensuring
that every Australian who wants to be part of a sports
community, in any role, enjoys the extraordinary benefits
and grows as a result of their engagement with the sport
of their choice.
The Australian Sports Commission (ASC), comprising
Sport Australia and the Australian Institute of Sport
(AIS), is proud to support Australian sport at all levels,
on behalf of the Australian Government. We nurture and
develop sport at the community level with the help of
our partners across the industry. This support extends
to our Australian athletes competing at the pinnacle of
world competition.
The unprecedented challenge of the global COVID-19
pandemic since 2020 has required incredible resilience
as a society and within our sport sector. We know,
however, sport is playing a crucial role in the nation’s
rebuilding efforts, which presents us with great
opportunities.
The Tokyo Olympics and Paralympics were shining
examples of the hope and inspiration sport can provide
to our elite athletes, but also the communities they
represent. Postponed a year, it was wonderful to see
our Australian athletes respond to this adversity with
the equal-best gold medal haul in our Olympic history
and a total of 46 medals across a myriad of sports.
Our Paralympians also overcame the toughest of
preparations to excel and inspire Australians, bringing
home 80 medals including 21 gold across 10 sports.
More so, it was inspiring to see how our Olympians and
Paralympians represented us so proudly with humility
and respect, reinforcing their status as important role
models.
This is important, because we need Australian sport to
carry forward a legacy from one generation to the next.
This is about building sustainable improvement and
success across everything we do.
We want to inspire a thriving participation base,
recognise the invaluable contribution of our volunteers,
build sport capability and give our elite athletes the very
best chance to succeed to competition and life beyond.

We are immensely proud of our many programs and
initiatives that support a connection and involvement
with sport at all levels. Our national Sporting Schools
program provides an important first step to get children
active and engaged through sport, while the AIS’s focus
on wellbeing can ensure our athletes feel supported
during their time in high performance sport so it is as
positive and rewarding as it can be.
There is so much to look forward to with a golden
runway of major sporting events on home soil over the
next decade, leading to the Brisbane 2032 Olympic and
Paralympic Games. Some of the world’s biggest sporting
events will converge on our shores, with World Cups or
World Championships locked in for basketball, cricket,
football, and netball, to name a few, presenting more
wonderful opportunities for Australian sport to thrive.
South East Queensland’s winning bid for the 2032
Olympic and Paralympic Games provides an incredible
opportunity to unite the nation through sport and
provide all Australian children the chance to dream of
representing their nation on the world’s biggest stage,
right here at home.
2032 has become a giant target to aim towards, aligning
our sports, our infrastructure, and our communities to
leave a positive legacy for a post-COVID Australia.
This is a pivotal time for our sector and the future green
and gold runway provides an opportunity to consider
the role that each of us can play in building a stronger,
leaner and healthier sports industry.
On behalf of the ASC, thank you to everyone who
contributes to Australian sport with the aim of making it
better for all.
I could not be more excited for sport in Australia and the
opportunities that will come our way.

JOSEPHINE SUKKAR AM
EXECUTIVE ASC CHAIR
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Commonwealth Games
#AUTHOR

Commonwealth Games Australia is proud
to support Volleyball Australia

With the Birmingham 2022 Commonwealth
Games rapidly approaching, Australian sport fans
will again get to cheer for the green and gold in
what our Chef de Mission Petria Thomas OAM
has described as a ‘bumper year of sport’. As the
countdown continues to the Games, the preparations
continue to ramp up for the Australian Team.
It is expected Australia will be represented in
Birmingham by a team of 425 athletes, the largest
to compete at an overseas Games. Should all
team sports qualify, the team will surpass the
Glasgow 2014 team size of 415 athletes. The Gold
Coast team in 2018 numbered 473 athletes.
We have recently celebrated and cheered for our
Australian Team members at the Tokyo Olympics and
Paralympics, where Commonwealth Games Australia
Alumni members numbered 152 at the Olympics and 28
at the Paralympics. During this time, our Team Executive
has been in the midst of planning the eagerly anticipated
Birmingham 2022 Games, creatively organising around
pandemic challenges and a multiple village set up.
We recently celebrated our 300 days to go milestone
which provided the perfect occasion to announce
that Australia’s favourite koala, Borobi, will be the
mascot of the Australian Commonwealth Games team.
Borobi’s team mascot appointment continues his
Commonwealth Games association beyond the Gold
Coast Games, complementing his important work as an
Indigenous languages champion with the Yugambeh
Museum. Commonwealth Games Australia has also
revealed the ‘Unity’ symbol used as part of the Gold
Coast Games’ Reconciliation Action Plan, will become
part of the team identity for the Australian Team.
We are continuing to focus on our Strategic
Plan – First Among Equals – as we embrace the
future beyond Birmingham 2022 to the 2026
Games. With a strong focus on our dual vision of
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‘Pursuing Sporting Excellence’ and ‘Connecting with
Communities’, the Plan incorporates five strategic
priorities: Delivering Team Success; Connecting
with Communities; Presenting a Powerful Brand;
Leading the Way; and Hosting Great Games.
On the road to Birmingham 2022 our financial
support for our Member sports continues.
As a direct legacy of the Gold Coast 2018
Commonwealth Games, Commonwealth Games
Australia is investing $13m in funding to our Member
sports and directly to team members across the 21
sports that will form the Australian Team in Birmingham.
We are proud to contribute $147,812 to support
Volleyball Australia in its preparations for Birmingham.
This is a significant contribution to Australian sport
for which we are proud. The funding is all designed
to help our Member sports go Green2Gold2Great
and to assist emerging team members to
Breakthrough2022 at the Games to keep Australia
as the No. 1 nation in the Commonwealth.

CRAIG PHILLIPS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Community Engagement Report
PHIL MULLER

In May 2021 the VA Executive team approved a structural
workforce change for Volleyball Australia to align its core
business with the developing strategic plan. Combining
the portfolio areas of Events, Education and Participation
further supported the outcomes of the events review,
conducted in 2020 and approved by the VA Board in
January 2021, whereby events are to be conducted with
more community engagement, to be more holistic and
to ensure all participants at the event left with a positive
experience.
COVID continued to have a significant impact on our
business. In this reporting period we have not been able
to conduct any indoor events, but we were extremely
fortunate to be able to host our beach series of events,
including the first hosting of our Beach Schools Cup. It
further impacted across the Participation landscape as
many States and Territories were in lockdown and there
was no access to community sport.
A complete report on each area of Events, Education and
Participation follows this introduction.
During the year we welcomed Jarred Osborne into our
Events team. Jarred’s arrival supports our events team
with his Sports Presentation and match scheduling skills.
Jarred replaced Charles Hall who left VA in April 2021.
As manager of this newly created team, I would like
to express my sincere thanks to our team members,
all of whom work tirelessly with such enthusiasm and
professionalism, given the demands of the ever-changing
COVID environment has presented:
Verity Hanka		
Trent Clarke		
Jarred Osborne		
Lindsay Chugg		
Rebecca Walter		
Joella Hanson		
Nam Pham		
Alicia Espinosa		

Senior Events Manager
Senior Events Manager
Events Manager
Events Coordinator
National Participation Manager
Participation Coordinator
National Education Manager
Education Coordinator

In closing I would like to acknowledge the support
that the team has received from our Member States
and Territories and their Executive Officers. To the
many volunteers who tirelessly support our events and
programs, we could not have achieved our outcomes.
Special thanks to our Government and local council
supporters who make our hosting of events and programs
possible. Thank you to Tourism and Events Queensland,
Major Events Gold Coast, Office of Sport (NSW), Northern
Beaches Council (NSW), City of Holdfast Bay (SA),
Cobram Business Community.
I would also like to acknowledge the collaborative working
relationship the participation team have developed with
the Victoria University. This support provides scientific
based research into the development of our programs.
PHIL MULLER
DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
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Event Logos
Throughout 2020 and 2021 Volleyball Australia went
through a review process for its event properties to
better define and align the events and their position
within the organisation. This review process provided a
cluster group outcome and a greater understanding of
where each event fits within the greater organisation as
a whole and in the development pathway of athletes,
coaches and officials in our sport.
Along with this review process, came an evident need
for better alignment with event branding across all
Volleyball Australia event properties. The existing
branding and logos had no linkage with each other,
Volleyball Australia or any other VA properties so each
event had to stand on its own causing a watering down
of brand recognition.
Volleyball Australia engaged the services of Swell
Design Group to come up with a new brand concept for
the Volleyball Australia Events which could be aligned,
affiliated and modified to have a recognisable look for
each in the newly defined cluster groups as well as allow
room for growth and addition for potential future events

EVENTS
EVENTS
BEACH
BEACH

INDOOR
INDOOR
JUNIOR
JUNIOR

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

SENIOR
SENIOR

SENIOR
SENIOR

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

BEACH
BEACH
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL

VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
LEAGUE
LEAGUE

VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
LEAGUE
LEAGUE

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

TOURTOUR

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

JUNIOR
JUNIOR
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
CHAMPIONSHIPS
CHAMPIONSHIPS

19

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

YOUTH
YOUTH
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
CHAMPIONSHIPS
CHAMPIONSHIPS

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

BEACH
BEACH
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
TOURTOUR
DIVISION
DIVISION
2
2

DIVISION
DIVISION
2
2

MASTERS
MASTERS
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
CHAMPIONSHIPS
CHAMPIONSHIPS

JUNIOR
JUNIOR

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

CLUB
CLUB
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
CHAMPIONSHIPS
CHAMPIONSHIPS

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL

SCHOOLS
SCHOOLS
CUPCUP
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AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

BEACH
BEACH
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
MASTERS
MASTERS
CHAMPIONSHIPS
CHAMPIONSHIPS

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

JUNIOR
JUNIOR
BEACH
BEACH
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
TOURTOUR

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

BEACH
BEACH
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
4 vs 44 vs 4

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

YOUTH
YOUTH
BEACH
BEACH
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
CHAMPIONSHIPS
CHAMPIONSHIPS

AUSTRALIAN
AUSTRALIAN

BEACH
BEACH
VOLLEYBALL
VOLLEYBALL
SCHOOLS
SCHOOLS
CUPCUP

Beach Events
There was limited impact by COVID on
our beach events during this reporting
period. Overall, there was an increase
in participation rates this year from our
beach events.
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Australian Beach Volleyball Tour
Cobram Barooga Classic
22-24 January 2021
Thompsons Beach, Cobram, VIC
This was the third iteration of the ABVT being held in
Cobram Barooga on Thompsons Beach. This year we
included the U19 & 21 Australian Beach Championships.
This event is welcomed by locals each year and with
the inclusion of an extra event, has helped us to secure
funding for 2022.
There was an increase of 22 teams for ABVT from 2020
totalling 69 teams this year and a total of 54 teams in
the U19/21’s event which was an increase of 9 teams
from the previous year which was held at Manly Beach.
We were very happy with the numbers for this event
especially because of its location. Having the extra
event did help with the increase in numbers for ABVT,
however, COVID did cause several issues leading up to
the event which took a toll on a few teams from NSW
due to border closures.
The teams of Chris McHugh / Damien Schumann and
Nikki Laird / Becchara Palmer started their domestic
campaign in style, winning Gold. The event included
live broadcast from SBS for both gold Medal matches.
This was fantastic for our sport and was well received
by viewers all are the country. A total of 216 803 people
tuned in to watch it live. This was a larger viewership
than the NBL.

Placings
Div 1 Women
1

Nikki Laird (NSW)/Becchara Palmer (SA)

2

Caitlin Bettenay (QLD)/Georgia Johnson (QLD)

3

Phoebe Bell (QLD)/Jess Ngauamo (QLD)

4

Tessa Browne (WA)/Sarah Burton (WA)

Div 1 Men
1

Damien Schumann (VIC)/Chris McHugh (SA)

2

Zachary Schubert (SA)/Max Guehrer (SA)

3

Thomas Hodges (VIC)/Paul Burnett (WA)

4

Izac Carracher (NSW)/Marcus Ferguson (QLD)

Div 2 Women
1

Belle Scotney (QLD)/Kylie Marshall (QLD)

2

Evangeline La Terra (VIC)/Lucia La Terra (VIC)

3

Coco Farrow (QLD)/Sophia Soderberg (SA)

4

Eva Brac (QLD)/Saskia Jones (QLD)

Div 2 Men
1

Sam Flowerday (ACT)/Lorenzo Pope (ACT)

2

Johannes Schaufler (VIC)/John Stock (VIC)

3

Chris Dembowski (VIC)/William Sandall (VIC)

4

Solomon Bushby (SA)/Jack Pearse (SA)
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U19 & 21 Australian Beach
Championships
25-27 January 2021
Thompsons Beach, Cobram, VIC
Placings
U21 Women

U19 Women

1

Stefanie Fejes (NSW)/Jesse Mann (NSW)

1

Louella Wallbridge (SA)/Kendel Haslett (SA)

2

Jana Milutinovic (SA)/Brianna Mears (QLD)

2

Chelsea Doyle (SA)/Ruby Vanloo (SA)

3

Jasmine Fleming (QLD)/Alisha Stevens (QLD)

3

Anna Birke (NSW)/Amy Le Blang (NSW)

4

Tessa Browne (WA)/Sarah Burton (WA)

4

Coco Farrow (QLD)/Sophia Soderberg (SA)

5

Bailee Kendall (SA)/Allysha Sims (SA)

5

Chloe Jacobi (VIC)/Kira Woodward (VIC)

6

Charlotte White (SA)/Annelies Jones (QLD)

6

Eva Brac (QLD)/Saskia Jones (QLD)

7

Ella Schabort (WA)/Chloe Durston (QLD)

7

Holly Uren (ACT)/Lucia Zarak (ACT)

8

Kayla Mears (QLD)/Tara Phillips (SA)

8

Kasey Hogan (ACT)/Cassie Dodd (WA)

9

Bonnie Hart (SA)/Georgy Grummet (SA)

9

Brielle Kettleton (QLD)/Michela Strati (QLD)

10

Isabella Homes (SA)/Lucy Knight (SA)

10

Lara Atanda (ACT)/Charlotte Duncan (QLD)

11

Lauren Cox (VIC)/Lucy Watkins (QLD)

11

Mei Doan Herlihy (ACT)/Allana Benson (ACT)

12

Lucia La Terra (VIC)/Evangeline La Terra (VIC)

12

Mia Retschko (VIC)/Amber Davison (VIC)

13

Ella Milne (QLD)/Jaiha Birkett (QLD)

13

Summer Parry (VIC)/Shelby Pearce (VIC)

14

Lily Rowe (QLD)/Amelia Takken (QLD)

14

Zoe Smith (AUS)/Cesare Tamryn (VIC)

15

Zoe Tregeagle/Kathryn Wilkinson (ACT)

U21 Men

U19 Men
1

Kiefer Sinclair (NSW)/Lucas Josefsen (QLD)

1

Tom Dempsey (WA)/Korben Phillips (WA)

2

Shaun Andersen (QLD)/Jack McIntosh (VIC)

2

Ruben Gale (QLD)/Connor O\'Neill (QLD)

3

Toby Bergh (QLD)/Jeremy McEvoy (QLD)

3

Benjamin Booth (QLD)/Chaz Pucko (QLD)

4

Rory Hart (SA)/Millon Jones (SA)

4

Jack Pearse (SA)/Solomon Bushby (SA)

5

Andrew Terry (SA)/Lachlan Ward (SA)

5

Henry Clapp (SA)/Henry Ambagtsheer (SA)

6

Sam Kay (VIC)/Will Kay (VIC)

6

Matthew Watkins (QLD)/Declan Burns (QLD)

7

Thomas Smith (NSW)/Joshua Hillard (NSW)

7

Mitchell Mccombe (VIC)/Alexander Bye (VIC)

8

William Bechler (SA)/Alex Candy (SA)

8

Sam Flowerday (ACT)/Lorenzo Pope (ACT)

9

Alexander Book (SA)/Cohen Manning (SA)

9

Joshua Howat(WA)/Fraser Garrett (NSW)

10

D'Artagnon Potts (SA)/Benjamin Silver (SA)

10

Quinn Tennent (VIC)/Alex Rahmani (VIC)

11

Kaia Clarkin (VIC)/Matthew Kemp (VIC)

11

Antonio Rositano (SA)/Jack Rogers (SA)

12

Jack Ha (VIC)/Lachlan Scherger (VIC)

12

Chris Hodges (QLD)/Seth Chen (QLD)

13

William DArcy (NSW)/Samuel Chen (NSW)
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Australian Beach Volleyball Tour
Glenelg Beach Open
5-7 February 2021
Glenelg Beach, SA
This event was a last-minute change. The ABVT
was due to be held in Scarborough WA, but due to
border closures we had to come up with a plan B.
We approached City of Holdfast (Glenelg) asking for
financial assistance, within a few days they approved
cash support towards the ABVT Glenelg Beach Open.
We had to navigate through COVID restrictions, border
closures and snap lockdowns, and in the end, we ended
up with a total of 65 teams. Due to lockdowns, several
teams from Victoria and NSW were unable to play.
Both staff and players battled against torrential rain,
cyclonic winds, and very cold conditions for the most
part, the weather gods did give us a break for both
the Men’s and Women’s gold Medal matches. This was
the first domestic event for Mariafe Artacho del Solar
and Taliqua Clancy, taking out the Gold Medal in the
Women’s competition. Home ground advantage helped
Chris McHugh and Damien Schumann take out Gold in
the Men’s competition. No broadcast for this event due
to the late change in venue/state.

Placings
Div 1 Women
1

Mariafe Artacho (NSW)/Taliqua Clancy (QLD)

2

Stefanie Fejes (NSW)/Becchara Palmer (SA)

3

Phoebe Bell (QLD)/Jess Ngauamo (QLD)

4

Christie Jenkins (VIC)/Rebecca Ingram (VIC)

Div 1 Men
1

Damien Schumann (VIC)/Chris McHugh (SA)

2

Thomas Hodges (VIC)/Paul Burnett (WA)

3

Zachary Schubert (SA)/Max Guehrer (SA)

4

Mateusz Zieba (NSW)/Isaac Kapa (QLD)

Div 2 Women
1

Evangeline La Terra (VIC)/Lucia La Terra (VIC)

2

Bonnie Hart (SA)/Michaela Kelly (SA)

3

Kendel Haslett (SA)/Louella Wallbridge (SA)

4

Isabella Homes (SA)/Lucy Knight (SA)

Div 2 Men
1

Joshua Howat (WA)/Jarrah Brownhill (QLD)

2

Russell Moore (SA)/Danny Helman (SA)

3

Trent O’Dea (QLD)/Samuel Williamson (QLD)

4

Shaien Govender (VIC)/Chris Philbrook (SA)
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Australian Beach Volleyball Tour
Manly Beach Open
19-21 February 2021
Manly Beach, NSW
This was the first event of the summer where most
athletes had the chance to play as borders where
mostly open and limited restrictions were in place. It
was our biggest event of the summer with a total of
89 teams. This was the largest team numbers on the
ABVT for several years. We were blessed with amazing
weather and some fantastic beach volleyball. SBS
Broadcast resumed for both Gold Medal matches with a
total of 178 069 tuning in to watch live.
Mariafe Artacho del Solar and Taliqua Clancy battled
against Nikki Laird / Becchara Palmer in a tight 3 set
match, where Mariafe and Taliqua won their 2nd Gold
Medal of the summer and Chris McHugh and Damien
Schumann continued their golden form taking out their
3rd consecutive ABVT event of the summer.

Placings
Div 1 Women
1

Mariafe Artacho (NSW)/Taliqua Clancy (QLD)

2

Nikki Laird (NSW)/Becchara Palmer (SA)

3

Michaela Mokrohajska (NSW)/Lucia Michalovicova (NSW)

4

Phoebe Bell (QLD)/Jess Ngauamo (QLD)

Div 1 Men
1

Damien Schumann (VIC)/Chris McHugh (SA)

2

Thomas Hodges (VIC)/Paul Burnett (WA)

3

Zachary Schubert (SA)/Max Guehrer (SA)

4

Casey Grice (WA)/Aaron Crook (NSW)

Div 2 Women
1

Nicolette Brice (NSW)/Saskia de Haan (NSW)

2

Allysha Sims (SA)/Lauren Cox (VIC)

3

Cassandra Dodd (WA)/Charlotte Duncan (QLD)

4

Lucia La Terra (VIC)/Evangeline La Terra (VIC)

Div 2 Men
1

Chaz Pucko (QLD)/Jarrah Brownhill (QLD)

2

Bryce Poland (QLD)/Connor Spence (QLD)

3

Shaien Govender (VIC)/Martin Kaufer (VIC)

4

Georgios Fountotos (NSW)/Peter Fountotos (NSW)
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Australian Beach Volleyball Tour
Finals
12-14 March 2021
Coolangatta Beach, QLD
The final event of the ABVT was held on beautiful
Coolangatta Beach. With a total of 76 teams
competing, 17 teams more than the previous year.
Having continued support from Tourism and Events
Queensland and the Major Events Gold Coast really
helped to make this event a success.
Chris McHugh and Damien Schumann rounded out a
perfect summer by taking out the ABVT Finals being
crowned Men’s Tour Champions and, in the women’s,
Mariafe Artacho del Solar and Taliqua Clancy won their
3rd consecutive event being crowned the women’s Tour
Champions. A total of 200,376 viewers tuned in to
watch the ABVT Finals.

Placings
Div 1 Women
1

Mariafe Artacho (NSW)/Taliqua Clancy (QLD)

2

Nikki Laird (NSW)/Becchara Palmer (SA)

3

Alice Rohkamper (NSW)/Stefanie Weiler (VIC)

4

Phoebe Bell (QLD)/Jess Ngauamo (QLD)

Div 1 Men
1

Damien Schumann (VIC)/Chris McHugh (SA)

2

Zachary Schubert (SA)/Max Guehrer (SA)

3

Thomas Hodges (VIC)/Paul Burnett (WA)

4

Robert Reeves (QLD)/Christopher Blake (QLD)

Div 2 Women
1

Belle Scotney (QLD)/Isabella Homes (SA)

2

Anna Rasmussen (QLD)/Jac Jones (QLD)

3

Michelle Kopecka (NSW)/Anna Guenkel (QLD)

4

Yvonne Pan (QLD)/Thati Pedrosa (QLD)

Div 2 Men
1

Sam Flowerday (ACT)/Joel Berry (QLD)

2

Connor Spence (QLD)/Ashley Hinds (QLD)

3

Brandon Eagle (VIC)/Robert Hope (VIC)

4

Kiahl Morley (QLD)/Jonathan Janssen (QLD)
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Australian Youth
Beach Volleyball Championships
26-29 April 2021
Coolangatta Beach, QLD
There was a total of 128 teams that competed in this
event. This was up by 5 teams from last year which
did not include WA. The WA government’s border
restrictions made it impossible for teams from the west
to compete. WA had planned to bring 25 teams, if they
were to attend, this event would have been the biggest
to date.
QLD were the winners of the Andy Burdin Shield which
was the 7th year in a row.
Andy Burdin Shield Results
1st – Queensland on 26 points
2nd – New South Wales on 20 points
3rd – Victoria on 8 points
4th – South Australia on 6 points
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Australian Youth
Beach Volleyball Championships
Results
Placings
U18 Girls

U17 Girls

1

Stefanie Fejes/Jesse Mann (NSW)

1

Georgina Vanloo/Hannah Mclean-Wright (SA)

2

Coco Farrow /Ella Milne (QLD)

2

Sienna Arena/Ella Mustovic (VIC)

3

Emily Heintzleman/Anna Birke (NSW)

3

Jessica Lawrie/Natasha Neilson (QLD)

4

Eva Brac/Charlotte Duncan (QLD)

4

Mali Towers/Lara Limbrick (NSW)

5

Catherine Vogel/Sharna Homer (QLD)

5

Alexandria Smith/Parri Barrelle (NSW)

6

Evangeline La Terra/Talia Samuel (VIC)

6

Lucy White/Lucy Stratford (SA)

7

Brielle Kettleton /Michela Strati (QLD)

7

Tandia Briggs/Ruby Lonsdale (QLD)

8

Genevieve Nissen/Maya Siwek (QLD)

8

Isabella Cook/Jennifer Yang (NSW)

9

Saskia Jones/Chloe Ryder (QLD)

9

Ruby Archer/Jacinta Tattersall (ACT)

10

Marley McHugh/Jasmine Ferguson (NSW)

10

Luella Greer/Eliza Forbes (VIC)

11

Brooke Ronan/Ella Schabort (WA)

11

Kayla Hill/Aleah Hill (QLD)

12

Kiera Johnson/Phoebe Hempsell (NSW)

12

Kayla Cantrill/Ayla Harmer (QLD)

13

Lucy Aboud/Charlotte van Gerwen (ACT)

13

Ruby Deakin/Shae Williams (SA)

14

Eden Klos/Madison Butcher (SA)

14

Olivia Walsh/Chloe Wise (QLD)

15

Kaia Brienen/Malia Barrele (NSW)

15

Sophia Dobson/Jaime Titmus (QLD)

16

Stephanie Baker/Amber Lotzof (VIC)

16

Molly Forehan/Charlotte Fitzharris (VIC)

17

Kalsie Timms/Elodie Ashton (VIC)

17

Laura Reynolds/Aggie Barber (NSW)

18

Holly Phillips/Jenna Sampson (ACT)

19

Angelina Hunter/Caitlin Weaver (ACT)

20

Maggie Fahey/Sascha Zarins (SA)

U18 Boys
1

Will Kay/Sam Kay (VIC)

2

Toby Bergh/Jeremy McEvoy (QLD)

3

Taliesin Drake/Luke Ryan (QLD)

U17 Boys

4

Ben Hood/Caleb Sala (QLD)

1

Ben Carroll/Mitchell Croft (VIC)

5

Sam Kelly/Cameron Marshall (SA)

2

Ben Schickinger/Harley Sinclair (NSW)

6

Dalton Morrison/Ajax Smith (QLD)

3

Matthew Cook/Xander van Driel (QLD)

7

Alex Lawson/Timothy Ebbs (NSW)

4

Kevin Yu/Joshua Munter (NSW)

8

Esteban Cure/Jamie Fouche (QLD)

5

Charlie Beard/Andrew Olson (NSW)

9

Max Chilco-Burns/Quinlan Hayes (VIC)

6

James Clark/Thomas Goh (QLD)

10

Bailey Slessor/Finlay McDonald (NSW)

7

Zane McDonald/Jai Dorloff (QLD)

11

Lindsay Henson/Mitchell Heathcote (VIC)

8

Zack Yorkston/Tyson Mik (SA)

12

Brandon Grant/Toby Josefsen (QLD)

9

Ethan Rayner/Carter Forrester (ACT)

13

Lowan Scott/Ryan Watson (ACT)

10

Max Gray/Connor Daniels (SA)

11

Zed Wilson/Jackson Murray (ACT)

12

Aaron Nguyen/Callan Thomas (VIC)

13

Brodie Hawke/Lucas Godden (ACT)

14

Max Jolly-Perrett/Ethan Crawford (QLD)
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U15 Girls
U16 Girls

1

Oriwia Noble/Mireille Smith/Remy Song (NSW)

1

Saskia Naismith/Cameron Zajer (SA)

2

2

Anna Le Blang/Jessica Hunter (NSW)

Molly Clark/Charlotte Hansen/Stephanie Marshall/
Chloe Sumich (QLD)

3

Jasmine Rayner/Kayla Stevens (QLD)

3

Matisse Conlon/Abbey Dobson/Milla Greber/
Isabella Zarb (QLD)

4

Emily Retschko/Emma Hannagan (VIC)

4

5

Monique Jones/Lily Strati (QLD)

Kate Callum/Ava Pitman/Giselle Pietrobon/Tahlia
Ryder (QLD)

6

Georgia Howlett/Lina Mueller (QLD)

5

7

Olivia McKenzie/Shelby Peace (QLD)

Leah Gelt/Jemima Kinkade/Hilary Hannagan/
Shalomi Samuel (VIC)

8

Emily Benson/Amanda Uren (ACT)

6

Felicity Cantrill/Millicent Jennings/Amelie Howlett/
Danniella Tulloch-Juleff (QLD)

9

Renee Marchant/Lilyana Stanojevic (QLD)

7

10

Jodeci Faraimo-Saolele/Brooke Marchant (QLD)

Zephyr Brus/Isla Barker/Ella Bourke/Sienna Orde
(SA)

11

Daisy Mabin/Yma Smith (QLD)

8

Lily Moore/Emma Taylor/Summer Lazenby/Anya
Voznessenski (QLD)

12

Kyla Peel/Kayla-Jane Hor (VIC)

9

13

Gemma McNamara/Rebekah Pocock (VIC)

Sienna Dry-Mortimer/Christina Hunter/Leyla Papp/
Gabi Dahms (ACT)

14

Alice Jensen/Zhanna Russell (QLD)

10

15

Courtney Peck/Laura Seed (QLD)

Riona Azad/Gorochana Babu/Alexandra Brothers/
Sophie Weaver (ACT)

16

Shanti Patterson/Abbi Oldfied (SA)

U15 Boys

17

Tia James/Lana Hollaway (SA)

1

Asher Gill/Lucas Fletcher/Zach Addison/Angus
Rooke (NSW)

2

Keno Barendse/Aidan Howe/Luka Sazdov/Wil
Fearnley (QLD)

3

Alexander Kioupelis/Sam Orford/Joshua Slogrove/
Sebby Taylor (QLD)

4

Lachlan Gillett/Benjamin Larsen/Jett van Doren/
Jack Weeden (QLD)

5

Ryan Hutchings/Zavier McInerney/Sam ChilcoBurns (VIC)

6

Zak Axton/Finn Barker/Archie Milne/Caden Rieger
(QLD)

7

Kayden Cao/Luke Huddleston/Ayush Kharel/
Sebastian Cooper (SA)

8

William Thomas/Alexander Le Norodom/James Tran
(SA)

9

Nuhad Azad/Elijah Boyle/Atticus Fittler (ACT)

U16 Boys
1

Adam Fejes/Killian Donovan (NSW)

2

Nicholas Craig/Ethan VanderWal (QLD)

3

Dave Brown/Kye Van Beest (QLD)

4

Adax Brienen/Jett Rocker-Graham (NSW)

5

Nicholas Humphries/Bailey Morgan (QLD)

6

Luca Smith/James Kay (VIC)

7

Timothee Philippe/Archer Springer (QLD)

8

Hudson Clark/Felix Birke (NSW)

9

Jerome Mak/Sasha Voznessenski (QLD)

10

Tyson Dagenais/Samuel Garvin (NSW)

11

William Baarslag/Jonah Parry-Rosella (QLD)

12

Carlos Basterfield-Cereceda/Angus Parker (VIC)

13

Jiacheng Li/Angus Montague (QLD)

U14 Girls

14

Ashtyon Kay/Max Bush (SA)

1

15

Kai Lawrence/Koen Miller (QLD)

Lily Cafer/Lily Callum/Zara Duclos/Florence Liu/
Anabelle Ryan (QLD)

16

Finley Bennett/Orlando Caruso (SA)

2

17

Jack Kelly/Thomas Kain (SA)

Erin Bielanowski/Allegra Conlon/Zara Gaviglio/Jorja
Grocott/ Taylah Tulloch-Juleff (QLD)

18

Nick Carswell/Markus Zarak (ACT)

3

Matilda Jenkinson/Maeve McCowen/Lana Sax/
Eloise Springer/Lily Moore (QLD)

19

Ty Pucko/Bryce Thomas (QLD)

20

Amir Rezaei/Taj Saini (QLD)

U14 Boys
1

Cian Bligh/Levi Beard/Matthew Olsen/Rohan
Kumar (NSW)

2

Ethan Grocott/Didier Liddell/Ethan Rubens/
Benjamin Trenow (QLD)

3

Raiden Kyaw/Matthew Marshall/Chase Paterson/
Edward Pill (QLD)

4

Josh Elson/George Mcnaught/Nicholas Shiner/
William Smith (QLD)

5

Riley Barker/Eli Bauer-Ludbey/Elias Swenson/
Tyrone Peatey (QLD)
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Australian Beach Volleyball
Schools Cup
30 April-2 May 2021
Coolangatta Beach, QLD
After the unfortunate cancellation of the inaugural
event in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the event
finally got off the ground in 2021. Volleyball Australia
has been working hard to make this event happen for
several years and has endured many hurdles. We are
extremely happy to have had a successful first event
and that the beach school’s event is now cemented
in the calendar of many schools across Australia. This
event was a huge success with 97 teams entered and is
destined to grow exponentially over the next few years.
Participating teams predominantly originated from
within QLD with a few schools travelling from New
South Wales, Victoria and Australian Capital Territory to
take part in the event.

Champions School Results
Placing

29

School

Points

1

Craigslea

1758

2

Kelvin Grv

1152

3

Lk Ginninderra

798

4

St Columba

494

5

St Josephs

467

6

Nth Beaches

414

7

The Scots

257

8

St Benedict’s

237

9

Kings

225

10

Shailer Park

210

11

Mansfield

200

12

The Gap

191

13

Pittwater

183

14

Burnside

157

15

Faith Lutheran

156

16

Caloundra

150

17

Citipointe

100

18

Cleveland

85

19

Geelong

78

20

St Pauls

74

21

Calamvale

70

22

Nowra

70

23

Pine Rivers

68

Volleyball Australia | Annual Report

Results
4-a-side Year 7/8 Girls

Pairs Year 9/10 Girls

Pairs Year 11/12 Boys

1st

Craigslea 1 (QLD)

1st

Craigslea 1 (QLD)

1st

Kelvin Grove 1 (QLD)

2nd

Caloundra (QLD)

2nd

Kelvin Grove 1 (QLD)

2nd

Pittwater (NSW)

3rd

Craigslea 2 (QLD)

3rd

Kelvin Grove 2 (QLD)

3rd

Lake Ginninderra 1 (ACT)

4th

Craigslea 3 (QLD)

4th

Mansfield (QLD)

4th

Citipointe (QLD)

5th

Craigslea 3 (QLD)

5th

St Columba 2 (NSW)

Pairs Year 7/8 Boys

6th

Faith Lutheran (QLD)

6th

Craigslea 1 (QLD)

1st

The Gap (QLD)

7th

St Benedict's (QLD)

7th

Lake Ginninderra 3 (ACT)

2nd

St Columba (NSW)

8th

Craigslea 2 (QLD)

8th

St Josephs 2 (QLD)

3rd

Craigslea 1(QLD)

4th

Craigslea 4 (QLD)

5th

Craigslea 2 (QLD)

6th

Craigslea 3 (QLD)
4-a-side Year 7/8 Boys

9th

St Columba 3 (NSW)

4-a-side Senior Girls

10th

Northern Beaches (NSW)

1st

Kings (QLD)

11th

Geeling (VIC)

2nd

Caloundra (QLD)

12th

Kelvin Grove 2 (QLD)

3rd

Lake Ginninderra (ACT)

13th

St Josephs 3 (QLD)

4th

Calamvale (QLD)

13th

St Columba 1 (NSW)

15th

Craigslea 2 (QLD)

16th

St Josephs 1 (QLD)

17th

The Scots (NSW)

18th

Craigslea 3 (QLD)

19th

Shailer Park (QLD)

20th

Craigslea 4 (QLD)

21st

Lake Ginninderra 2 (ACT)

22nd

Craigslea 5 (QLD)

1st

St Josephs (QLD)

2nd

The Scots (NSW)

3rd

Craigslea 1 (QLD)

1st

Nothern Beaches (NSW)

4th

Craigslea 2 (QLD)

2nd

Lake Ginninderra 2 (ACT)

3rd

Lake Ginninderra 1 (ACT)

Pairs Year 9/10 Boys

4th

Mansfield (QLD)

Northern Beaches 1 (NSW)

5th

Lake Ginninderra 3 (ACT)

1st

Pairs Year 11/1 2 Girls

2nd

The Scots (NSW)

6th

Kelvin Grove 3 (QLD)

3rd

Kelvin Grove 3 (QLD)

7th

Cleveland (QLD)

4th

Kelvin Grove 4 (QLD)

8th

Lake Ginninderra 4 (ACT)

5th

Northern Beaches 2 (NSW)

9th

St Bededicts 2 (QLD)

6th

Craigslea 1 (QLD)

1st

Burnside (QLD)

10th

Craigslea (QLD)

7th

Craigslea 2 (QLD)

2nd

Kings 2 (QLD)

11th

Kelvin Grove 2 (QLD)

8th

Craigslea 3 (QLD)

3rd

Kelvin Grove (QLD)

12th

Burnside (QLD)

9th

Kelvin Grove 1 (QLD)

4th

Kings 1 (QLD)

13th

Lake Ginninderra 5 (ACT)

10th

St Josephs 1 (QLD)

5th

Pine Rivers (QLD)

14th

Shailer Park 2 (QLD)

11th

Kelvin Grove 2 (QLD)

6th

Faith Lutheran (QLD)

15th

St Pauls (QLD)

12th

St Josephs 2 (QLD)

16th

Pittwater (NSW)

17th

St Benedicts 1 (QLD)

18th

The Gap (QLD)

19th

Nowra (NSW)

20th

Kelvin Grove 4 (QLD)

21st

Kelvin Grove 1 (QLD)

22nd

St Columba 1 (NSW)

23rd

St Columba 2 (NSW)

24th

Shailer Park 1 (QLD)

4-a-side Year 11/12 Boys
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Participation Report
REBECCA WALTER

Our collaborative organisational approach seeks
to facilitate engagement across all community
sectors to ensure that volleyball as a sport
remains open, visible, diverse and flexible.
2020/2021 presented challenges previously unseen by
the sporting community, resulting in our delivery and
engagement network limitations nationally. Although we
have experienced significant impacts nationally due to
COVID-19, our data collection process for membership
and exposure participation continues to evolve with an 8%
increase in Full Active Membership. However, we did see
a 22% drop across all exposure categories, an inevitable
result due to ongoing barriers presented by the pandemic.
Our collective approach to develop, source and enhance
participation opportunities nationally is of paramount
importance as we continue to stretch the boundaries of
innovation and engagement, enabling new and returning
participants to continue to experience volleyball together.
Our collaborative organisational approach seeks to
facilitate engagement across all community sectors to
ensure that volleyball as a sport remains open, visible,
diverse and flexible.
With a reinvigorated approach to Community
Engagement, we strive to innovate with new, engaging,
and modified ways to play centred around participant
experience. Our focus is to re-engage the team philosophy
through teamwork, coordination, movement, and modified
gameplay to support people playing, engaging, and
physical activity. Further work is required to ensure we are
capitalising on the amount of volleyball played nationally
and actively seeking ways to engage and interact with
new and emerging volleyball participants, linking current
programs and grassroots development.
Acknowledgements:
Thank you to everyone who has supported, engaged and
participated throughout the year; without your ongoing
support, we would not be able to deliver on our key
priorities.
To the Member States and Territories and their Executive
Officers, a special thank you for your support and
ongoing commitment to the sport. Our collective
process of delivering on participation outcomes, and
for everything that you do in the delivery space for the
sport is outstanding. I remain grateful for the passionate
discussions and look forward to expanding our consistent
development nationally.
Thank you to Victoria University First Year College,
specifically Loretta Konjarski, for your ongoing
engagement and education expertise in supporting our
participation outcomes and priorities. Your continued
involvement and partnership in Light Volley cannot be
understated; we appreciate your commitment and look
forward to an ongoing fruitful relationship with Victoria
University.
To our volunteers, coaches, officials and volleyball
participants, all aspects of participation could not continue
to grow without your ongoing engagement.
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To the Department of Foreign Trade and Affairs (DFAT)
and Australian Aid for supporting the Pacific Sports
Partnerships in a successful 6-year funding program of
the programs in Papua New Guinea, Fiji and Vanuatu,
and a big thank you to the outstanding work of all
those on the ground tirelessly working for Sport for
Development outcomes.
To the staff of Sport Australia, thank you for your
continued funding, assistance and advice through our
process of growing and developing.
Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank the
Volleyball Australia Board and staff as we continue to
work together towards our goals of participation and
sporting excellence in benefit for all.
Looking forward
We look forward with great anticipation and know
that the new year will open up more opportunities
to enhance our customer experience. Evolving our
data collection process and structuring dedication
programs will enable all engaged, including participants,
spectators, local businesses, schools and the local
community, to have a positive experience.
• The resurgence of participation will provide a base to
celebrate the Olympics and Paralympics, pushing for
more inclusive and diverse opportunities for volleyball
participation.

development and links to local engagement, offering
positive experiences across our event and program
network.
• Establishing our Community Engagement Framework,
with modifications to engage innovative remote
learning and delivery opportunities addressing
physical activity, social and mental wellbeing, utilising
a cross-organisational approach remains a priority
aligned to the Community Engagement Team.
• Club Development and delivery of Participation
Programs is a priority to enable our sport to maintain
deliverable levels of people connected to our sport
with the increase in membership and participation.
The sporting landscape has changed, and our collective
efforts to ensure we provide participation opportunities
is more important than ever. We will seek to be
proactive in maintaining levels of participation whilst
planning for resurgence into the community. We aim to
support our current programs to enable sustainability
and further development across the country, giving
Clubs/Associations more opportunities to grow and
enabling everyone wishing to participate in our sport an
opportunity and ever better environment to do so.
I am look forward to 2020/21 and what our new
participation products and equipment can offer new
engagement and ongoing participation within our sport.

• We continue to focus on modified and adaptable
equipment, further engaging grassroots and inclusive
development in alternative avenues of delivery.

The way we engage with sport is changing; our
priority is to innovate, communicate and offer ongoing
opportunities for all wishing to participate in volleyball.
I will continue to bring a passion to the sport that
can both lead and support volleyball participation,
and together we will continue to deliver on strategic
outcomes to establish sustainable opportunities for
participation whilst fostering a lifelong love for our sport.

• We seek to aligned online education opportunities
for Spikezone and Light Volley providing dedicated
resources for all wishing to engage with volleyball.

REBECCA WALTER
NATIONAL PARTICIPATION MANAGER

• Volleyball has been selected as 1 of 20 sports to
engage in the new Club Connect Program. A modified
delivery of sporting schools addressing the transition
between the school and club programs.

• Online Volunteer training will support the ongoing
Volleyball Australia | Annual Report
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Spikezone/Sporting Schools
REBECCA WALTER

Ongoing promotion and delivery continue
to address lasting changes to the delivery
network and conditions in light of COVID-19.
Volleyball delivery in Sporting Schools continues to grow
with more requests for volleyball programs annually,
increasing our participant and program numbers.
Innovative delivery and resources have been prioritised over
the past six months to ensure Volleyball remains relevant
and visible in a remote learning/delivery environment. The
challenge for increased demand for modified delivery has
addressed and supported by Member States who continued
to deliver consistent and effective programs through the
most trying times—resulting in increased interest and
requests for Volleyball.
•

Volleyball continues to deliver in the top 10 sports
nationally.

•

On average (as a category C sport), we deliver 100+
programs per term.

•

We have redefined the equipment delivery process with
significant interest in modified equipment including
Portable Mini Volleyball Nets, Light Volley balls, Rubber
Disc Markers and Teacher Resource Packs.

38K+

Participants engaged
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457

Volleyball Sporting
Schools Programs
Delivered

Light Volley
REBECCA WALTER

Light Volley exemplifies the benefits universal
design provides development, with a participant
centred focus on delivery. The program is easily
and safely modified, boasting interchangeable
variable delivery models including multi-surface
delivery, attractive to participants of all ages,
female friendly, welcoming and inclusive.

Light Volley seeks to:
•

Get inactive people moving in their local community.

•

Build awareness and understanding of the
importance of physical activity across all stages of
life

•

Improve the system of sport and physical activity by
targeting populations at risk of inactivity across all
life stages; and

•

Deliver ongoing impact through the development of
sector capability

•

Light Volley online learning modules have been
created and distributed to targeted delivery cohorts.

•

These modules aim to challenge the way facilitators
deliver a physical activity session and strive to
provide the knowledge and skills for facilitators to
become the best they can be

We seek to establish a dedicated delivery network to
broaden our delivery capacity and establish links within
communities previously untouched by Volleyball.
2021 will see a targeted alignment of Spikezone online
education and seek a staged roll-out in conjunction
with a reactivation of the sport and club development
through capability and capacity building.
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We are Volleyball
REBECCA WALTER

VA identified six key areas to address
in conjunction with the evaluation:
Efficiency, Sustainability, Relevance,
Effectiveness, Impact & Value..
In July 2020, VA initiated an evaluation on the We are
Volleyball Agenda (WaV) to review the WaV program
with the considerations of historical, current and the
individual project desired aims and objectives; and how
these aims, and objectives meet the needs of Volleyball.
This evaluation aims to provide insight into the
effectiveness of WaV against the original objectives and
to understand the value of the program. The findings
contained in the report are intended to be helpful for
the sport of Volleyball and inform the future direction of
volleyball participation and subsequent programs.
VA identified six key areas to address in conjunction with
the evaluation: Efficiency, Sustainability, Relevance,
Effectiveness, Impact & Value.
In conjunction with the above, the following key
questions have evolved through the evaluation:

volunteers, and resources
•

Sustainability – exploring project sustainability
related to success and future benefits to the sport of
Volleyball, aligned to strategic planning

•

Unintended Outcomes and Key Learnings – data
collection shows several positive outcomes and key
learnings that may contribute to future program
development

INITIAL FINDINGS
1.
The data we collect is insufficient nationally and
has highlighted an expanding gap, resulting in
inefficiencies, and missed opportunities to continue
to grow the sport collectively
2.

There is a fundamental misunderstanding of WaV

3.

•

Is the delivery of the WaV the most effective tool to
address and increase participation in the sport of
Volleyball?

Deliberate data sharing mechanisms need to be
implemented to support further collaboration
opportunities and growth

4.

•

Did the Value of Investment meet the needs of
the targeted outcomes and overall investment
nationally?

There is significant benefit in conducting reviews
in a coordinated effort as a regular mechanism to
enable sustainable growth and management

5.

WaV has increased collaboration and innovation
through local participation initiatives

The evaluation comprises a mixed-method approach
involving both internal and external stakeholders across
the following three key phases, Project Planning and
Framework Development; Data Collection; and Analysis/
Reporting.
Underlying themes have emerged regarding the need
to have key participation priorities and a collective
approach to addressing these priorities aligned to
strategic direction. Feedback referenced the need for
increased levels of trust and to provide individual levels
of the sport autonomy to continue to deliver on core
business, including defining roles and responsibilities.
The following key themes were extracted and have
established a focus for the evaluation and reporting
structure:
•

Project scalability and adaptability – current
projects and future benefit to designing/delivering
volleyball programs that are scalable and or
adaptable

•

Accountability – the need to ensure all parties are
held accountable for the management, delivery, and
outcomes collectively

•

Project Administration – mixed feedback on
application/reporting benefits and purpose,
including a duplicated administration process
related to finances

•

Collaboration/Unified Behaviours – benefits the
current program has provided, future opportunities
and managing barriers related to staffing,

35
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Preparations are underway for distribution of final
paper and seek to ensure appropriate alignment of
WaV recommendations to the core outcomes of the VA
Stakeholders Strategic Planning Meeting (November
2020), addressing the following core Strategic
Participation outcomes:
Increasing Opportunities for the Australian Population to
Play Volleyball
•

Develop a collaborative model to provide support
and development for clubs to become sustainable
and grow where possible

•

Develop new and enhance existing participation
programs such as Spikezone, Light Volley and
Discover Volleyball

•

Complete the redesign, development and action
of national education programs for coaches and
officials

Event Experience
REBECCA WALTER

Over the past four years, VA has designed and delivered
ongoing event experience activations seeking to ensure
positive, fun and engaging entry-level participation
opportunities on the ground at our events.

The purpose of these activations is to engage fans in a
fun and positive way, providing a memorable experience
of Volleyball to inspire participation and future
involvement in the sport. We place significant priority on
all areas of community engagement with multiple levels
of engagement designed to deliver a tailored experience.
Over the past 12 months, we have sought to
formalise our established Community Engagement
Framework delivery through a suite of events to
understand better how and why people consume
our sport and what makes a positive experience.
The Community Engagement Framework ensures a
whole organisation approach to event alignment and
delivery, enabling participation, social connectedness,
and local engagement at the community level.
We strive to provide opportunities for people to
try, learn and continue to engage, stretching the
boundaries of innovation and engagement to continue
to experience Volleyball together. Our collective
organisational approach seeks to enable engagement
across all community sectors, both face-to-face
and in a remote programming environment.
We look forward to working with our member states
to align event and program experience opportunities
opening up engagement and delivery through locations
and networks not currently engaged with Volleyball.
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Education Report
NAM PHAM

Though 2020/21 was a challenging year, it
also provided the opportunity to reflect,
consider and plan. With the disappointment
of many cancelled events, the volleyball
community remained enthusiastic and
hopeful in preparation for the future.
A new Coach and Official Accreditation Framework
was developed with consultation and contribution from
various stakeholders including Sport Australia, State
Volleyball Association Representatives, industry experts,
as well as education managers from other national
sporting federations. The new framework emphasises
the need for continued and varied development
opportunities rather than a limited set curriculum
for accreditation. It will be exciting to the see the
implementation of this concept over the next few years.
With the unpredictable restrictions of community sport
due to COVID, Volleyball Australia acknowledges the
great work that was done by our state affiliates to be
adaptable and continue to persevere with running online
courses and workshops to train and engage our referee
and coaches. Volleyball Australia also launched its online
development series, VARC Online for the referees and
VA Masterclasses for the coaches. These were free online
webinars facilitated by Volleyball Australia refereeing
and coaching experts.
It was pleasing to see that everyone’s contribution
resulted in an increase in the population of our
accreditation totals.
With many events cancelled due to COVID-19 travel
restrictions, there were very few opportunities for
coaches and officials to participate. Unfortunately, all

VA national and AVC international level indoor volleyball
events were cancelled, however it was very fortunate
that the Australian Beach Volleyball Tour was allowed
to run. The tour was a great opportunity as a follow on
from the previous year’s focus on facilitating more beach
volleyball inclusive refereeing courses. This season the
Referee Delegate role for the tour was shared amongst
our best senior beach referees, rather than just one
individual as in previous years. With better trained
player/referees at the competition, supported by a range
of highly qualified Referee Delegates and Supervisors,
the expectation and standard of officiating was evidently
improved and more consistent.

Total Numbers Coach and Officials

Total Coaches
2020 – 21
2019 – 20
Total Officials

Volleyball Australia working together with Sport Australia creating new coach development content.
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2,691
2,319

5,034
4,751

Appointments
Volleyball Australia would like to thank the following
officials who supported the Australian Beach Volleyball
Tour

2021 AUSTRALIAN BEACH VOLLEYBALL
TOUR - COBRAM
Referee Delegate: Darren Grimsey
Referees:
Prathap Balachandran, Alicia Espinosa, Monique Fulcher,
Karl Hayduk, Aaron Krahe, Kevin Lentin, Kevin Nguyen,
Jaek Passier

2021 AUSTRALIAN U19/U20S BEACH
VOLLEYBALL CHAMPIONSHIPS - COBRAM
Referee Delegate: Darren Grimsey
Referees:
Prathap Balachandran, Alicia Espinosa, Monique Fulcher,
Karl Hayduk, Aaron Krahe, Kevin Lentin, Kevin Nguyen,
Jaek Passier, Andrew Scotford

2021 AUSTRALIAN BEACH VOLLEYBALL
TOUR, AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIP GLENELG

Referee Delegate: Jaek Passier
Referees:
Darren Grimsey, Rebekah Rath, Kevin Nguyen, Aaron
Krahe, Kevin Lentin, Andrew Scotford, Emily Anderson,
Jake McIntyre, Peter Bawhey, Saskia Jones, Alicia
Espinosa

2021 AUSTRALIAN BEACH VOLLEYBALL
TOUR, AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIP MANLY
Referee Delegate: Andrew Scotford
Referees:
Darren Grimsey, Jaek Passier, Linley Scholes, Jayden
Norsworthy, Kathryn Wilkinson, Aaron Krahe, Arnaud
Motreff, Jonathan Lamprecht, Kevin Lentin, Kristina
Knezovic, Laymond Chu, Charlotte Van Gerwen

2021 AUSTRALIAN BEACH VOLLEYBALL
TOUR FINALS - COOLANGATTA

Referee Delegate: Stephen Giugni
Referees:
Darren Grimsey, Jaek Passier, Linley Scholes, Rebekah
Rath, Monique Fulcher, Jayden Norsworthy, Jonathan
Lamprecht, Kevin Lentin, Kristina Knezovic, Tanya Kowald,
Michele Herbert, Alicia Espinosa

2021 AUSTRALIAN YOUTH BEACH
VOLLEYBALL CHAMPIONSHIPS COOLANGATTA

Referees Delegate: Jaek Passier
Referee Supervisors:
Michele Herbert, Alicia Espinosa, Desiree Tan, Linley
Scholes, Aleesa May, Rebekah Rath, Monique Fulcher,
Jayden Norsworthy, Kathryn Wilkinson, Kevin
Nguyen

2021 AUSTRALIAN BEACH VOLLEYBALL
SCHOOLS CUP - COOLANGATTA

Referee Delegate: Peter Hreszczuk
Referees:
Darren Grimsey, Michele Herbert, Alicia Espinosa, Jaek
Passier, Desiree Tan, Linley Scholes, Aleesa May, Rebekah
Rath
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The funding is all designed to help our Member sports go Green2Gold2Great
and assist emerging team members to Breakthrough2022 at the next
Games to keep Australia as the No. 1 nation in the Commonwealth.
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High Performance Report
CRAIG MARSHALL

The 2020-21 year saw the COVID-19 pandemic
continued to have an impact on our Beach, Men’s and
Women’s national teams, as international competitions
were either cancelled, postponed, or not possible
to attend due to international border closures from
Australia.
The men’s and women’s senior indoor athletes spent
the year competing in overseas club competitions, or
at the Australian Institute of Sport, using the facilities
as a training hub while they prepared for the upcoming
national team season.

led by Simon Naismith, Margo Wiltens and Jo
Brown (Physio), while being supported by VA High
Performance Director Craig Marshall. The team was
also greatly supported each day on tour remotely
by, Andrew Schacht through Volleyball expertise
and coaching, and Ben Haines with Strength and
Conditioning support.

Athletes - Men
Christopher McHUGH, Damien SCHUMANN, Maximilian
GUEHRER, Zachary SCHUBERT, Paul BURNETT (from
March 2021), Thomas HODGES (from March 2021).

The men’s and women’s senior beach teams were
still completing their 2020 Tokyo Olympic Games
qualification process in the first half of 2021, with
Women’s team Artacho del Solar/Clancy needing two
events to cement their spot in the Olympics, and the
Men’s program having the opportunity to qualify a team
through the Continental Cup semi-final and final.

Paul Burnett and Thomas Hodges progressed from
Developing Volleyroos to Senior Volleyroos and
supporting our successful Men’s Continental Cup
campaign as reserve players, this was an important
step on their volleyball journey and a connection piece
towards the next Olympic cycle.

Beach Volleyball

Mariafe ARTACHO del SOLAR, Taliqua CLANCY, Nicole
LAIRD, Becchara PALMER, Phoebe BELL, Jessyka
NGAUAMO.

The 2020-21 year was the last of a unique 5-year Tokyo
2020 Olympic cycle, due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Unfortunately, due to our international border
closure we have seen International Beach Volleyball
tournaments postponed or cancelled for our Australian
teams from July 2020 to March 2021. Therefore,
our athletes and teams have experienced limited
international competition experiences and results during
this period.

Athletes - Women

From July 2020 the women’s campaign headquarters
was relocated from South Australia (SASI) to the
Queensland Academy of Sport (QAS) facilities in
Brisbane. This decision was made to enable the women
to optimise their outdoor training time throughout
the pandemic pre- Tokyo Olympics with the reduced
international competition event opportunities.

The positive of this challenge is it has enabled our
athletes/teams and coaches to focus on individual
and team developments, in the areas of physical
enhancements, technique advancements, team
offence / defence systems, holistic developments
and psychological readiness for the Olympic Games
competition, qualification tournaments and future
international activities.

Developing Volleyroos

VA witnessed significant and necessary FIVB extensions
to the Tokyo ‘2020’ Olympic Games qualification period.

Athletes:

• Criteria 1 - Beach Volleyball Olympic Ranking List
(Top 15) extended until 13th June 2021.

The Developing Volleyroos Men program continued to
evolve and grow throughout this period. Under the case
management of Coach Michael Nelson, the following
athletes had the opportunity to develop, grow and be
connected to our Senior Volleyroos men’s teams as they
prepared for Olympic qualification.
• Paul Burnett and Thomas Hodges (graduated to
Senior Volleyroos in April 2021)
• Izac Carracher (from November 2020)

• Criteria 2 - Continental Cup extended to AVC Semifinal 18th - 20th June 2021 and AVC Final 24th - 27th
June 2021.

• James Takken (from March 2021)

Australia’s major performance achievements were
highlighted by:

Volleyball Australia would like to sincerely thank all the
2020-21 staff, along with the South Australian Sports
Institute, and Mr. Wes Battams (SASI Director), the
Queensland Academy of Sport (QAS), and Chelsea
Warr (QAS Chief Executive Officer)for the continued
support for our sport to Tokyo 2020 and through these
challenging pandemic times.

• 2021 FIVB Mexico Cancun Hub 3rd event, Gold Medal
Mariafe Artacho Del Solar / Taliqua Clancy, led by
Senior Coach Kirk Pitman
• 2020 Tokyo Olympic Games, Beach Volleyball
Olympic Ranking List 5th Seed and Qualification Mariafe Artacho Del Solar / Taliqua Clancy (Criteria 1
above).
• 2021 Asian Champions Cup Final – Men Gold Medal
and Olympic Qualification (Criteria 2 above), Nakhon
Pathom Thailand, Christopher McHugh / Damien
Schumann, Maximilian Guehrer / Zachary Schubert

• Josh Howat (from November 2020)
• Marcus Ferguson (until March 2021)

VA would also like to extend a special thank you to
the Australian Institute of Sport, the Australian Sports
Commission, and the Australian Olympic Committee,
in particular Matt Carroll (AOC Chief Executive Officer)
for the support in the lead up and throughout the 2020
Tokyo Olympic Games.
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High Performance Report (cont)
Men’s Volleyball

Women’s Volleyball

With the COVID-19 pandemic affecting all parts of
the sport, a number of the Men’s team athletes opted
to remain in Australia for their 2022/21 club season.
Volleyball Australia held a Men’s team camp at the
Australian Institute of Sport in Canberra in July for the
national team athletes who were able to attend, with
AVA Men’s Head Coach Brendan Garlick overseeing
the camp. It was at this camp that VA re-affirmed its
commitment to supporting the Men’s team at the 2021
iteration of the Volleyball Nations League.

The Women’s program experienced limited activity in
the 2020-2021 season due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
A number of the Canberra-based squad were fortunate
enough to be included as part of the Australian
Volleyball Academy, and through this were able to
access a daily training environment at the Australian
Institute of Sport.

The athletes that chose to remain in Australia continued
to utilise the AIS as a training hub until the end of the
year.
Recruitment for a new Men’s program coach began in
February with VA executive staff. After consultation with
the FIVB, Brazilian coach Marcos Miranda was appointed
in the Men’s Head Coach role. Marcos’ first project was
to lead the Men’s National team at the 2021 Volleyball
Nations League (VNL).
The VNL campaign began with a training camp in
Poland, at the facilities for Polish volleyball team KS
Jastrzębski Węgiel SA. The local volleyball network in
Jastrzębski Zdrój has continued to be a strong support
for the national Men’s team.
The 2021 Volleyball Nations League (VNL) was held in
in Rimini, Italy. The tournament was set up as a ‘bubble’
format, with all 16 teams and staff staying across two
hotels and competing at one competition and training
venue for the entire five-week period. Matches were
played in a three-day block on followed by a three-day
training block. This was to facilitate the women’s VNL
tournament which was also being played at the same
venue under the same format.
The Australian team was selected with a performance
focus for the tournament as well as preparation for the
upcoming Asian Championships. A number of senior
team athletes were unavailable for selection due to
the format of the event, which allowed an opportunity
for six athletes to debut at the 2021 VNL. Middle
Blocker Nehemiah Mote was selected as captain for the
tournament, and long-standing Libero Luke Perry was
selected as his co-Captain.
The Men’s Volleyroos endured a very tough campaign
from the world’s best teams, most of who were on their
way to competing at the 2020 Tokyo Olympic Games.
The team managed to secure an emphatic win against
Asian rivals Iran, narrowly lose a close four-set match
against Japan, and take a set off eventual bronze medal
winners France. Australia finished the 2021 VNL in 16th
place, with 14 losses and 1 win. Whilst the results were
well below what the Men’s Volleyroos have produced
in recent previous tournaments, it was a worthwhile
experience to identify where the performance gaps lie
for the Men’s program, and which areas need to improve
for future international success.
The majority of the team returned to Australia to
carry out their mandatory 2-week quarantine before
turning their attention to the Asian Championships in
September, which serve as a 2022 World Championships
qualifier. The goal is to improve on 2019’s 2nd place, and
to win the championship.
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The first national team activity of 2020 was a training
camp at the AIS in November in the lead-up to the
annual Good Neighbour tournament. During this time
the Women’s Volleyroos and the Women’s AVA squad
held an exhibition match in Canberra. It was one of the
first indoor public sporting events in Canberra since the
initial COVID-19 lockdown earlier that year and attracted
over 100 spectators to the event.
To engage the squad in 2021, a training camp was
organised for the Easter long weekend. South Australian
and Victorian based Women’s Volleyroo athletes
were able to train in Canberra for the first time since
December 2019.
Head Coach Martin Collins finished up his role in April
2021, was succeeded by Russ Borgeaud as Volleyroos
Women Head Coach.
Planning for Asian Championships has commenced,
however the current COVID restrictions in Australia and
in the Philippines may mean a postponement until later
in the calendar year.

Athlete Wellbeing
The on-going COVID-19 pandemic revealed the
importance of athlete wellbeing, and how much support
is still needed in this area. Throughout the second
half of 2020, whilst our high-performance athletes
were fortunate enough to return to their daily training
environments, they were provided with numerous
workshops around topics such as wellbeing, stress, and
motivation in relation to the return to sport.
In April 2021, Volleyball Australia appointed a new
Athlete Wellbeing and Engagement (AW&E) Manager
Jason Tutt. Jason has previously been an elite athlete
in AFL football, playing seven seasons with both the
Western Bulldogs and Carlton Football clubs. He has
an extensive background in Athlete Wellbeing and
Engagement working previously with the Melbourne
Victory Football Club and then overseeing the Player
Development program at the Professional Footballers
Association.
The focus of the program shifted to building
relationships with key athletes prior to the Olympic
games campaign. In particular, the beach athletes who
had significant high-performance campaigns such as
world tour events, continental cup and for the indoor
men’s national team for their VNL campaign. The AW&E
focused its area of support to hotel quarantine, where
research showed could be a both physical and mental
stressor for elite athletes. A support program was
developed and delivered to over 20 categorised athletes
at various times and their coaches and support staff.
This support continued when our Olympic athletes and
coaches returned from Tokyo.
AW&E worked closely with the AVA athletes, supporting
them through the introduction of an athlete wellbeing
profile. This enabled athletes to explore different areas of
AW&E and provided the AW&E manager greater insight
into areas that the group needed further development in.
11 male athletes and 24 female AVA athletes completed
the form, with key areas of development being
resume and CV writing and community engagement
opportunities. This was a pilot program that will be
mandatory across all NSO AW&E providers in 2021.
AW&E has also supported various staff members in
20/21, with all staff invited to a wellbeing workshop
on self-care to help with the stress and unknown of
Covid-19. This program was received well. 12 staff
members following on from this session expressed
interest in developing their knowledge of mental
health. Volleyball Australia and the AW&E manager has
arranged for those staff members to formally complete
their mental health first aid certificates. This is a great
opportunity for personal development.
In exciting news for VA, its AW&E program has
received confirmed funding through to the 2024 Paris
Olympic games. VA looks forward to the continual
development of this space, with a mental health check
being conducted in October 2021 which will help with
the development of a new AW&E framework. The AIS
and the AW&E manager will work closely together
to audit the existing program, develop new areas of
improvement, and build on the existing framework.
AW&E is an ever-evolving space in high performance
sport that Volleyball Australia is proud to be at the
forefront of program development and implementation
in conjunction with Sport Australia and the AIS.

VA High Performance Staff 2020-21
Women’s Volleyball
Senior Women’s Coach

Martin Collins
(until Apr 2021)

Senior Women’s Coach

Russ Borgeaud
(from May 2021)

Assistant Coach / Manager

Sue Jenkins

Assistant Coach / Manager

Russ Borgeaud

High-Performance Operations Manager

Vasanta Iyer

Principal Medical Officer

Dr. James Ilic

Physiotherapist – AVA

Casey Abblitt

Beach Volleyball
Men’s Coach

Andrew Schacht

Men’s and Women’s Coach

Margo Wiltens

Senior Women’s Coach

Kirk Pitman

Women’s Coach

Brad Tutton

Operations Manager &
Senior Performance Analyst
(Men’s Continental Cup Coach)
Men’s Developing Volleyroos Coach

Simon Naismith
Mick Nelson

Lead Physical Performance Coach
(Adelaide)

Ben Haines

QAS Physical Performance Coach
(Brisbane)

Chris Gaviglio

Performance Behaviour Coach
Principal Medical Officer
Physiotherapist – Lead
Physiotherapist (Brisbane)
Physiotherapist – on Tour
Soft Tissue Therapist
Dietitian (Adelaide)
Skill Acquisition Specialist (Adelaide)

Tom Patrick
Dr. James Ilic
James Trotter
Shane Lemcke
Jo Brown
Tim Joy
Olivia Warnes
Sian Barrasy

Men’s Volleyball
Senior Men’s Coach

Assistant Coaches
High-Performance Operations Manager
Principal Medical Officer
Physiotherapist – Touring

Marcos Miranda
(from April 2021)
Luke Reynolds
Liam Sketcher
Paul Carroll
Brendan Garlick
Vasanta Iyer
Dr. James Ilic
Bartek Celadyn
Filipe Galdino
Jose Salles

Strength & Conditioning Coach

(for 2021 VNL Campaign)

Luke Reynolds
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Indoor / Beach Results

Men’s results
VOLLEYBALL NATIONS LEAGUE
Rimini, Italy
28th May - 27th June 2021
Finished 16th out of 16 teams
Athletes
Beau Graham (QLD)
Arshdeep Dosanjh (NSW)
Steven Macdonald (QLD)
James Weir (ACT)
Trent O’Dea (QLD)
Luke Perry (WA)
Nehemiah Mote (NSW)
Luke Smith (WA)
Tom Douglas-Powell (QLD)
Nicholas Butler (WA)
Max Senica (QLD)
Tim Taylor (NSW)
Ethan Garrett (NSW)
Matthew Aubrey (QLD)
Tobi Azeez (VIC)
Sam Flowerday (QLD)
Billy Greber (QLD)
Staff
Marcos Miranda (BRA) Head Coach
Liam Skethcer (VIC) Assistant Coach
Vasanta Iyer (ACT) Team Manager
Filipe Augustino Silva Galdino (BRA) Physiotherapist
Results

Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
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-

Bulgaria 0:3 (21-25, 20-25, 20-25)
France 1:3 (26-28, 25-20, 14-25, 23-25)
Poland 0:3 (16-25, 10-25, 12-25)
Russia 0:3 (19-25, 24-26, 21-25)
USA 0:3 (23-25, 20-25, 17-25)
Japan 1:3 (18-25, 25-21, 26-28, 24-26)
Argentina 0:3 (18-25, 19-25, 20-25)
Italy 0:3 (20-25, 22-25, 14-25)
Iran 3:2 (25-23, 25-22, 23-25, 18-25, 15-12)
Slovenia 1:3 (25-18, 18-25, 18-25, 17-25)
Brazil 0:3 (17-25, 22-25, 12-25)
Serbia 1:3 (16-25, 13-25, 25-19, 15-25)
Canada 0:3 (17-25, 8-25, 20-25)
Netherlands 0:3 (23-25, 19-25, 19-25)
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21ST ASIAN SENIOR MEN’S VOLLEYBALL
CHAMPIONSHIPS
Chiba, Japan
12th – 19th September 2021
Finished 6th out of 16 teams
Athletes
Arshdeep Dosanjh (NSW)
Tom Edgar (QLD)
James Weir (ACT)
Trent O’Dea (QLD)
Max Staples (WA)
Luke Perry (WA)
Nehemiah Mote (NSW)
Thomas Hodges (VIC)
Nicholas Butler (WA)
Curtis Stockton (VIC)
Max Senica (QLD)
Malachi Murch (SA)
Staff
Marcos Miranda (BRA) Head Coach
Luke Reynolds (VIC) Assistant Coach
Craig Marshall (NSW) Team Manager
Declan Gillan (AUS) Physiotherapist
Results
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia

-

Uzbekistan 3:0 (25–16, 25–19, 25–19)
Kuwait 3:0 (25–21, 25–14, 25–9)
China 3:2 (25-27, 20-25, 25-21, 28-26, 15-12)
Qatar 0:3 (20-25, 20-25, 21-25)
Japan 0:3 (23-25, 17-25, 23-25)
Pakistan 3:0 (25–16, 26–24, 25–23)
Qatar 0:3 (21-25, 11-25, 23-25)

Beach results
FIVB WORLD TOUR CANCUN HUB - 1ST EVENT,
CANCUN MEXICO
April 16-20, 2021

Artacho del Solar/Clancy Won 3, Lost 2, Final Placing 5th

lost to CUB Mailen Deliz / Leila Martinez 1-2 (17-21, 21-13, 11-15)
d. CZE Barbora Hermannova / Marketa Slukova 2:1 (21-23, 21-10, 15-10)
d. ESP Paula Soria / Maria Carro 2:0 (21-19, 21-19)
d. USA Alix Klineman / April Ross 2:0 (29-27, 21-15)
lost to GER Chantal Laboureur / Cinja Tillmann 0:2 (19-21, 19-21)

FIVB WORLD TOUR CANCUN HUB - 2ND EVENT,
CANCUN MEXICO
April 22-26, 2021

Women’s results
NO MATCHES PLAYED DURING THIS PERIOD

Artacho del Solar/Clancy Won 2, Lost 2, Final Placing 9th

lost to NED Raisa Schoon / Katja Stam 1:2 (20-22, 21-16, 10-15)
d. USA Kelley Kolinske / Emily Stockman 2:0 (21-16, 21-13)
d. CAN Heather Bansley / Brandie Wilkerson 2:1 (21-15, 16-21, 16-14)
lost to USA Alix Klineman / April Ross 1:2 (21-19, 11-21, 11-15)

FIVB WORLD TOUR CANCUN HUB - 3RD EVENT,
CANCUN MEXICO
April 28-May 2, 2021

Artacho del Solar/Clancy Won 5, Lost 0, Final Placing 1st GOLD
d.
d.
d.
d.
d.

SUI Esmee Bobner / Zoe Verge-Depre 2:0 (19-21, 17-14 retired)
CAN Heather Bansley / Brandie Wilkerson 2:0 (21-15, 21-12)
POL Kinga Wojtasik / Katarzyna Kociolek 2:0 (21-18, 21-17)
CUB Lidiannis Echeverria / Yanisleidis Sanchez 2:0 (21-11, 21-17)
USA Alix Klineman / April Ross 2:0 (21-11, 21-15)

AVC CONTINENTAL CUP 2021 - SEMI FINAL,
NAKHON PATHOM, THAILAND
18-19 June, 2021

Semi-Final - MEN
Round 1: AUS d PHI 2-0
McHugh/Schumann d PHI Buytrago/Requinton 2:0 (21:11, 21:15)
Guehrer/Schubert d PHI Garcia/Arbasto 2:0 (21:11, 21:4 injury for PHI)
Final: AUS d JPN 2-0
McHugh/Schumann v JPN Hasegawa/Takahashi 2:0 (21:19, 21:11)
Guehrer/Schubert d JPN Shoji/Kurasaka 2:0 (21:16, 21:18)

AVC CONTINENTAL CUP 2021 - FINAL,
NAKHON PATHOM, THAILAND
25-27 June, 2021
CONTINENTAL CUP FINAL - MEN
AUS Final Placing 1st GOLD
Quarter Final: AUS d OMA 2-0
McHugh/Schumann v OMA Mazin/Nouh 2:0 (21:7, 21:14)
Guehrer/Schubert d OMA Haitham/Ahmed 2-0 (21:19, 21:18)
Semi Final: AUS d IRI 2-0
McHugh/Schumann d IRI Salemi/Vakili 2:0 (21:14, 21:18)
Guehrer/Schubert d IRI Raoufi R/A Mirzaali 2-1 (21:14, 21:18)
Final: AUS d INA 2-0
McHugh/Schumann v INA Candra/Yaya 2:0 (21:18, 21:12)
Guehrer/Schubert d INA Gilang/Danang 2-0 (21:13, 21:11)
CONTINENTAL CUP FINAL - WOMEN
AUS Final Placing 3rd (equal)
Quarter Final: AUS d NZL 2-1
Laird/Palmer d NZL Kirwan/MacDonald 2:0 (21:10, 21:17)
Bell/Ngauamo NZL Zeimann/Polley 1:2 (16:21, 23:21, 9:15)
Laird/Palmer d NZL Zeimann/Polley 2:1 (21:19, 15:21, 15:12)
Semi Final: AUS lost to CHN 1-2
Laird/Palmer lost to CHN Zue/Wang X.X. 1:2 (12:21, 22:20, 13:15)
Bell/Ngauamo d CHN SH. H Wen/J. Zh. Wang 2:0 Forfeit
Laird/Palmer lost to CHN Zue/Wang X.X. 1:2 (21:19, 10:21, 11:15)
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2020 Tokyo Olympics

Mariafe Artacho del Solar / Taliqua Clancy
SILVER MEDAL
			

AUS v Lidy/Leila CUB 2:0 (21-15, 21-14)

			

AUS v Menegatti/Orsi Toth ITA 2:0 (22-20, 21-19)

			

AUS v Makroguzova/Kholomina ROC 1:2 (8-21, 21-15, 12-15)

			

AUS v Xue, Wang X.X. CHN 2:0 (22-20, 21-13)

			

AUS v Pavan/Melissa CAN 2:1 (21-15, 19-21, 15-12)

			

AUS v Graudina/Kravcenoka LAT 2:0 (23-21, 21-13)

			

AUS v April/Alix USA 0:2 (15-21, 16-21)
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Chris McHugh / Damien Schumann
19th Place
			
			

AUS v Mol/Sorum NOR 1:2 (18-21, 21-18, 13-15)

			

AUS v Leshukov/Semenov ROC 0:2 (14-21, 16-21)

			

AUS v Herrera/Gavira ESP 0:2 (16-21, 16-21)
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Pathways Report
PAUL SMITH

Overview

Australian Volleyball Academy (AVA)

For the current reporting period, COVID continued to be
a major challenge for Volleyball, particularly in relation
to pathway program activities. A significant amount of
effort goes into preparing for a calendar of events that
ultimately were mostly cancelled. It has been a constant
challenge for the operations of the organisation and one
we look forward to overcoming soon.

The first 6 months of the period (July-Dec) focused on
maintaining the integrated Beach and Indoor Volleyball daily
training environment, with the added incentive of regular
weekly competitive opportunities in the VACT Capital
Volleyball League. Planning-wise, the program focus switched
towards the selection process for the 2021 AVA athlete intake.
The new intake of athletes (20 female and 20 male) plus 7
Women’s Volleyroos in Jan 2021 were chosen from over 110
applications.
Fortunately for the sport, a full series of Beach Volleyball
events from the start of 2021 allowed for a very busy summer
of Beach camps and competition for our AVA athletes.
COVID-19 travel restrictions continued to impact National
Youth and Junior Volleyball Championship representation
for AVA athletes, although fortunately there was limited
disruption to training activities based in Canberra.

This year focused on the consolidation of the AVA
program, evolving into its 2nd year of operation and
the reinforcement of the integrated Beach Volleyball /
Volleyball approach first launched at Australian Institute
of Sport from January 2020.
Pathway Beach Volleyball athletes had the opportunity
to compete at ABVT Div 2 and U19/23 events which were
largely unaffected by COVID-19 in the first half of 2021,
however Volleyball competitive opportunities continued
to be cancelled across the year.
National Junior Development Program (JDP) camps
and activities were mostly compromised by COVID-19,
including cancellation of Asian Youth and Junior
Championship events for a 2nd year, leaving a large gap
for the development of these age groups missing out on
international opportunities.
From a staffing standpoint there were some changes
both coaching and administratively in the Pathways
space. Myles Roantree moved from his AVA Assistant
Coach role into the new HP Operations Coordinator role
in March and April saw the retirement of Phil Borgeaud
and the commencement of his replacement, Paul
Smith. Special thanks and best wishes go to Phil for his
dedication to the sport over many years as a player,
coach and administrator – he will be sadly missed.

AVA Activities 2020-21
•

July – November 2020 – Capital Volleyball League (CVL)
AVA entered both a women’s and men’s team into the
CVL. The Women’s team finished 1st and Men’s team
finished 3rd.

•

October 2020 – AVA Beach Camp – Mollymook, NSW
Cancelled due to COVID

•

October 2020 – Joint AVA camp w Developing Volleyroos
(Men) – Adelaide, SA
Cancelled due to COVID

•

October 2020 – Joint AVA camp w QLD/QAS (Women) –
Brisbane, QLD
The main objective of this camp was inspiring AVA
athletes by exposing them to activities with the Senior
Beach Volleyroos such as a joint ‘King of the Court’
session and Q&A sessions. Another objective was to
develop AVA athletes by offering multiple sessions run
in conjunction with the Senior Women’s Coach, and
introducing playing concepts that are being used in the
Senior National Team. The athletes ended the camp on a
high by participating in Queensland’s beach state tour. All
objectives were achieved and the camp was considered
to be highly successful.

•

November – Joint AVA Camp w Senior Athletes –
Canberra, ACT
The AVA program held an end of year activity with
a combination of AVA, Junior and Senior program
athletes. The activity was held over a week and was
aimed at further developing the athletes’ knowledge and
understanding of playing at the international level. The
activity culminated in two teams competing in the annual
Good Neighbour tournament. Both teams met in the final
of the men’s top division, fighting out an epic 5 set battle.

•

January 2021 – AVA Beach Camp – Adelaide, SA
Cancelled due to COVID

•

January 2021 – AVA Beach Camp and Competition
(U19/21, ABVT)– Cobram, VIC
AVA male athletes were successful in winning the National
U19 and U21 championships as well as ABVT Division 2
competition. AVA female athletes secured a silver medal
in the U21’s as well as a fourth place in ABVT Division
1, which is a best ever result for our program across
both genders. They experienced an invaluable learning
experience, playing Senior Teams Laird/Palmer in their
semi-final and then the bronze medal match against Bell/
Ngaumo. The camp leading into the competition was very
useful for all athletes to get used to the gruelling heat, as

AVA Coaching Staff 2020/21
Staff
Program Director
HP Pathways Coordinator
Head Coach - Men
Head Coach - Women
Head Coach - Beach
Assistant Coach

Paul Smith (Apr 2021 -)
Phil Borgeaud (- Apr 2021)
Myles Roantree (Mar 2021 -)
Lauren Wann (- Feb 2021)
Brendan Garlick (Oct 2020 -)
Russell Borgeaud (- Apr 2021)
Martin Collins (- Apr 2021)
Anne Meijnderts (Sep 2020 -)
Andrew Strugnell (Mar 2021 -)
Myles Roantree (- Mar 2021)

Sports Science & Sports Medicine Staff
2020/21
Staff
Sports Medicine

Dr Jack Cookson, AIS (Jan 2021 -)
Dr Anna Topping, AIS (- Jan 2021)
Sports Physiotherapy Casey Abblitt
Sports Dietitian
Sophie Stanwell
Strength & Conditioning Andrew Heffernan (Mar 2020 -)
Jan Legg (Oct 2020 - Feb 2021)
Anne Meinderts (- Sep 2021)
Strength & Conditioning Assistant
Marcus Tolley
		
Nathan Lynch
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AVA Athletes 2020
Men
BROWNHILL

Jarrah

NSW

CHEN

Sam

NSW

well as getting an opportunity for the freshly formed
teams to find a rhythm in their game.

CHEN

Seth

NSW

CLARKIN

Kaia

WA

February 2021 – AVA Beach Camp and Competition
(ABVT)– Manly, NSW
AVA male athletes were successful in winning the
ABVT Division 2 competition. AVA female athletes
secured a silver and bronze medal in the Div 2
competition. The camp leading into the competition
gave our AVA athletes exposure to seeing some of
the Developing Beach Volleyroos as well as some of
the Senior National Beachvolleyroos train.

D'ARCY

William

DEMPSEY

Tom

WA

FLOWERDAY

Sam

QLD

GARRETT

Fraser

NSW

GREBER

Billy

QLD

HODGES

Chris

QLD

HOOD

Ben

QLD

HOWAT

Joshua

JOSEFSEN

Lucas

QLD

KEMP

Matthew

QLD

LUCCHESI

Dylan

VIC

PHILIPS

Korben

WA

POPE

Lorenzo

VIC

PUCKO

Chaz

QLD

SINCLAIR

Kiefer

NSW

SMITH

Liam

SA

ATANDA

Lara

QLD

BAKER

Brodie

QLD

BIRKETT

Jaiha

ACT

BROWNE

Tessa

WA

BURTON

Sarah

WA

COX

Lauren

VIC

March 2021 – AVA Beach Competition (ACT Open) Canberra, ACT
AVA athletes were successful in taking out the ACT
Open gold in both genders and saw another AVA
men’s team placing third.

DODD

Khiani

QLD

DODD

Cassandra

WA

DUNCAN

Charlotte

QLD

DURSTON

Chloe

QLD

March 2021 – AVA Beach Camp and Competition
(NSW Championships) – Manly, NSW
AVA male athletes finished with their best result at
a major open (quarter finals). AVA female athletes
saw another two teams finish their tournament in the
quarter finals.

HEINTZELMAN

Emily

NSW

HOGAN

Kasey

QLD

INSKIP

Kara

QLD

JONES

Annelies

QLD

KETTLETON

Brielle

QLD

AVA Graduations

MALAND

Tara

SA

Beach
•
Joshua HOWAT - Developing Beach Volleyroos

MILNE

Ella

QLD

MILUTINOVIC

Jana

SA

Transitioned Out of Program
•
Lara Atanda, Chris HODGES, Dylan LUCCHESI, Liam
SMITH, Jarrah BROWNHILL, Riley KEOGH, Jake
GREBER

PHILLIPS

Tara

SA

SCHABORT

Ella

WA

SIMS

Allysha

SA

STEVENS

Mikaela

NSW

TIPPING

Caitlin

WATKINS

Lucy

WEILER

Stefanie

SA

WHITE

Charlotte

SA

•

•

•

•

•

February 2021 – AVA Camp and competition (ABVT)
– Glenelg, SA
AVA male athletes were successful in winning the
ABVT Division 2 competition. Two AVA women’s
teams made it to the quarter finals in the Div 1
competition and lost their games to some of the
country’s best senior players. The camp leading
into the tournament helped our athletes get used to
playing on the actual beach and dealing with some
windy and rainy conditions to play in.
March 2021 – AVA Beach Camp and Competition
(ABVT) – Brisbane/Coolangatta, QLD
AVA male athletes were successful in winning the
ABVT Division 2 competition. For the first time ever,
AVA male athletes also successfully qualified for the
ABVT Division 1 Finals competition finishing with
a best ever result (knocked out in quarter finals).
Two of the top AVA female teams made it to the
quarter finals and one of those teams got knocked
out by Olympic Medallists Clancy/Artacho del Solar,
an unforgettable experience for the AVA athletes.
The camp leading into the competition saw the AVA
female athletes to train with some of the top QAS
female athletes, allowing some valuable high-level
scrimmages leading into the competition.

AVA Support

AVA also supported the following athletes to prepare for
their professional seasons in Europe
•

Conal McAINSH (Austria), Malachi MURCH (Germany),
James WEIR (Germany), Nick BUTLER (Poland),
Ethan GARRETT (Saudi Arabia)

QLD

SA

Women
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Junior Development Program (JDP)
Through the annual calendar of national developmental
camps and international tours, as well as commitment to
international benchmark competitions including Asian
Volleyball Age Group Championships, the JDP provides
athletes and coaches with an introduction to high
performance training and competition environments.
2020/21 was a quiet period for the JDP due to the Covid
pandemic. The vast majority of JDP activity Domestically
and Internationally was initially delayed and then
cancelled. Activity is planned to restart as soon as Local,
State and Federal restrictions allow.
The reporting period saw a staff change with Lauren
Wann (JDP Coordinator) departing the team in February,
and Myles Roantree transferring from an AVA Assistant
Coach role to the new High Performance Program
Coordinator role in March.

International Competition
Unfortunately, Covid-19 continued to have a detrimental
effect on athlete participation in international
competition. Previous Asian Age Group Ranking of
each cancelled championship was used to consider
the qualified teams to participate in FIVB Age Group
category World Championships 2021. The following
events were cancelled throughout this period and our
previous Age Group Ranking’s did not qualify our teams
to the World Championship’s.

Also during this time was the launch of the Revolutionise
Sport database of age-group athletes and staff, from
state associations, providing an effective solution to
the storage of JDP data better communications with all
those involved.

• 20th Asian Men’s U20 Volleyball Championship – Iran

Recent Activity

• 13th Asian U17 Volleyball Championship – Thailand

Domestic Camps
• Nov 2020 - Beach Development Camp – Mollymook,
NSW
- Cancelled due to COVID
• Nov 2020 – “Good Neighbour” Camp – Junior Men
and Women - Canberra, ACT
- Cancelled due to COVID
• Dec 2020 – Post AVSC Camp – Gold Coast, QLD
- Cancelled due to COVID
• Jan 2021 – Beach Development Camp – Adelaide, SA
- Cancelled due to COVID
• Apr 2021 – AIS Camp - Youth Men and Women Camp
– Canberra, ACT
Integrated camp hosted at the AIS, for Youth Age
Group women and men selected from the available
states, due to ongoing Covid travel restrictions. 41
athletes (18 Women, 23 Men) participated with
support of 9 coaches from interstate supported by
4 AVA Coaches and Staff. Training and competition
opportunities on both Sand and Indoor surfaces.
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• 20th Asian Women’s U19 Volleyball Championship –
China
• 13th Asian Men’s U18 Volleyball Championship –
Bahrain

Queensland Academy of Sport
Volleyball Program
The QAS Volleyball Program is an integrated program
incorporating both beach and indoor disciplines, and
involves players making a commitment to undertake
practice in both disciplines on a regular weekly basis.
Athletes work within the program through different
squads, which cater for athletes of different development
levels. This program provides athletes with access to
world-class international volleyball coaching; physical,
mental, tactical, technical and skill development combined
with strength & conditioning and athlete management.
The QAS Volleyball Program and its coaching staff
take a values driven and holistic approach to the
development of individuals as people as well as athletes
and uses volleyball as a vehicle to achieve this with an
emphasis on the core values of “Care and Respect”.
The 2020/21 program saw another year of growth for the
QAS. An increase in athlete numbers and expansion of
training followed the COVID lockdown period of 2020.
The Elite Performance squad progressed into a fulltime training program for both men and women with an
emphasis on beach volleyball. Due to the high calibre of
female athletes present in the program a further emphasis
on their development was possible through connection
with the newly relocated Women’s Beach Volleyroos. The
Elite Performance athletes incorporated indoor volleyball
through club, Queensland Pirates and Development
squad training but spend most of their time on the sand.
The Elite and Development parts of the program continue
to develop with a constant evolution of athletes. In 2021
there were 20 Queensland athletes (9 Male, 11 female)
were included in the 2021 Australian Volleyball Academy.
The Emerging Talent Program increased the number
of sessions at some of our existing venues (Craigslea,
Mansfield and Mountain Creek) as well as the addition of a
new program at St Peters Lutheran College. The continued
growth of the emerging talent program has occurred
concurrently with increases in junior athlete participation
in QBVT, club and state representative programs.
In 2021 QAS sent athletes as a program to compete
in all of the Australian Beach Volleyball Tour and the
U19 & U21 National Beach Volleyball Championships.
This was also followed up by 4 teams of athletes
travelling to Canberra to compete in indoor volleyball
for the AVA Invitational. This is the first time in a
number of years that QAS has competed as an entity
and it saw a lot of great performance results and well
as some new opportunities for athletes to compete
following a year of very limited competition in 2020.

Fulll-Time Staff
Chris Todd – QAS Volleyball Head Coach (Acting)
Dean Bielanowski – QAS Volleyball Asst Coach (Emerging Talent)

Part-Time Staff
Kylie Marshall – Administration, Volleyball Coach

Support Service Staff
Dr Peter Friis – QAS Volleyball Doctor
Bobbie-Jo Strong – QAS Volleyball Physiotherapist
Sabrina Jeffery – QAS Volleyball Sports Psychologist
Leanne Magalong – QAS Volleyball S&C Coach
Dan Favier – QAS Volleyball S&C Coach
James Henry – QAS Volleyball Personal Development Advisor

QAS Casual Coaching Staff
Benjamin Bell, Angela Gaviglio, Matt Grinlaubs, Sara
Montagnoli, Jess Ryder

Emerging Talent Casual Coaching Staff
Lindsay Baker, Cameron Bettenay, Ben Booth, Jessica
Croucher, Paul Dhu, Jasmine Fleming, Ruben Gale,
Vevin Mathew, Brianna Mears, Kayla Mears, Jefferson
Morrow, Connor O’Neill, Jonah Pearce, Alisha Stevens

Athletes
• 667 Scholarship athletes in 2020/21 (an increase of 127
athletes from 2019/20)
• Elite Performance – 14 athletes (9 females & 5 males)
• Elite - 39 athletes (18 females & 21 males)
• Development - 46 athletes (22 females & 24 males)
• Emerging Talent – 568 athletes (296 females & 272 males)
• 1 Talent Search Camp (Wide Bay)

QAS Training Facilities
QAS / QSAC, Sandstorm, Nissan Arena

Emerging Talent Training Facilities
Craigslea SHS, Mansfield SHS, St Peters Lutheran College,
Redlands College, Mountain Creek SHS, Harristown SHS,
Toowoomba Grammar, Benowa SHS and Nambour ‘Beach Pit.

Three QAS Volleyball elite squad athletes qualified to
present the Olympic Unleashed program throughout
schools and the community, whilst numerous other
athletes also took up mentoring opportunities in the
volleyball community (e.g. coach or mentor at AJBVC,
AJVC, Emerging Talent Centres, and Talent Search Camps).
The QAS Volleyball Programs recognise the significant
support from partner schools and facilities that are used
to deliver training and without the excellent working
relationship with the Queensland Academy of Sport and
access to support, funds, resources and facilities that
they offer the program would not be able to continue
to expand and improve as it has been able to do.
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Volleyball ACT
Board of Directors
President:
Director:
Director:
Director:
Director:
Appointed Director:
Appointed Director:

Dan Williams
Russell Borgeaud
Carmen Tregeagle
Graeme Budd
Liz Mallet
Cynthia Anderson
Tim Hubbard

Staff
Chief Executive Officer: 			
Nic Kaiser (from Feb 2021)
Chief Executive Officer: 			
Adam Castle (till Dec 2020)
Events Manger: 				
David Pease (from May 2021)
Competition & Club Engagement Officer:
Peter McCurdy (from May 2021)
Competitions & Events Manager:
Christine Gates (till Apr 2021)
Competitions Supervisor: 			Victor Amsteins
ACT Referees Commission Chair: 		
Dean Turner OAM

Key Achievements
• Managing return to play, ensuring covid safe practices
were in place
• Remaining financially viable through a COVID impacted
year

Highlights of 2020/2021
• The number of teams in VACT competitions grew by
60%
• Welcomed a new club, Royals Volleyball Club
• Good Neighbour successfully run within an COVID
impacted climate
• ACT Open Beach Tournament with most teams entered
in the history of the tournament

Current Trends
• Junior participation numbers continue to grow
• Referee and officiating levels are increasing

Upcoming Projects
• Beach Facility upgrade
• New Strategic Plan
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Volleyball NSW
Staff
Chief Executive Officer
Head of Events
Manager – Events
Manager – Beach Events
Events Coordinator
Events Coordinator
Head of Participation
Participation Coordinator
Sporting Schools Coordinator
Head of Pathways
Manager – Pathways Operations
Manager – Programs & Education
Pathways Coordinator
Education Coordinator
Pathways Administrator
Finance

Board
Baz Wedmaier
President
Briianka Nest
Members
Jarred Osborne (-May 2021)
Aurelien Bova (Jun 2021-)
Ben Abbott (Oct 2020-)
Rhiannon Burnett (Apr 2021-)
Tijanna Bibis (Sep 2020-)
Grace Tam
Edward Correia (Mar 2021-)
Martin Reader
Jason Laffer (Aug 2020-)
Mladen Stankovic (-Dec 2020)
Lauren O’Shea (April 2021-)
Alec Walker (Jan 2021 -)
Dimitri Sidiropoulos (May 2021-)
Under a Shared Services
Agreement with VA from July 2020

Key Achievements
• Reaffirmation and articulation of purpose, vision
and values with strong stakeholder engagement
• Strategic Planning and stakeholder
engagement to develop the next VNSW
Strategic plan – published October 2021
• Refreshed our visual identity, with alignment
to Volleyball Australia branding
• Comprehensive re engagement post lockdown
of 2020 seeing growth in all areas of the sport
• Integration of new CRM infrastructure, registration
system and website experience via RevSport across
our entire organisation including all Affiliates.
• Ongoing enhancements to governance
including identification and on-boarding of new
Board members and succession planning
• Creation of the NSW Phoenix Performance Program
• Overall 2nd at Australian Youth Beach
Volleyball Championships
• Winner of Community Sport Administrator
of the Year (Michelle Slack-Smith, Hunter
Volleyball) and Finalist of Community Event of
the Year (NSW Schools Cup Championship) at
the 2021 NSW Community Sports Awards

Highlights of 2020/2021
As NSW and most of Australia came out lockdown
in July 2020, VNSW hit the ground running. VNSW
made a conscious decision to focus on future
opportunities and recognized that diversifying
income was not only critical to our survival but
how we will thrive in the future. The focus turned
to some big projects like rebranding, corporate
governance structures and database management all
of which were completed in the 2nd half of 2020.
VNSW chose to engage more staff to unlock
opportunities for enhanced service delivery, growth
and ongoing organisational sustainability. All areas
of the organization saw unprecedented uptake in
engagement with events and programs either setting
new benchmarks or new products being created to
cater for the number of people wanting to play.
As 2021 started, the first official activities in the
newly launched Phoenix high performance program
launched strongly. The broader organisation
experienced continued growth prompting further
investment into staff. Senior Indoor games became a

Deborah Chung (-Apr 2021)
Lucy Coggan (April 2021-)
Ian Garrett (-Mar 2021)
Xiang Victor Jiang
Stuart Mackay
Roger Jones (-Jun 2021)
Matthew O’Connor (Jun 2021-)
Julien Prosser (Dec 2020-)
Peter Seligman (May 2021-)
Paul Smith (- May 2021)
Keith Suckling

spectator’s opportunity and the Youth Beach teams
arrived on the Gold Coast and delivered some brilliant
results arguably shocking a few along the way.
State League saw 150% increase in teams from
2019 (the last full year of competition) creating
capacity challenges to effectively deliver with
many clubs reporting over capacity training and
competitions. To help support clubs and satisfy
demand, VNSW launched a development program
under Phoenix with the Regional Academy network
seeing nearly 300 athletes start their training.
On June 26, 2021 the city of Sydney entered a second
major lockdown in response to the COVID delta variant
which went on to effect the entire state approximately
one month later. At the time, VNSW in 6 months had
hit or exceeded every KPI set for the end of 2021.

Current Trends
The extended lockdown period in Sydney and
greater NSW between June – November 2021
has made it difficult to judge how the sport
will emerge, however it is apparent that the
interest in Volleyball continues to increase.
VNSW has seen significant growth in every area
of the organisation along with the addition of new
focus areas in the past year. 2021 Membership is up
20% despite the lockdown, working partnerships
with other industry leaders and organisations with
a focus on venues and external funding is core
business and creative thinking has seen a growth
in a diverse range of playing opportunities at every
level. VNSW is projecting to reach record numbers
of membership and engagement again in 2021/22.

Upcoming Projects
The next VNSW Strategy, released in October 2021
will focus on how VNSW can maximize opportunities
for the sport through enhanced collaboration and
funding models, continuing to improve our profile in
NSW with strong relationships throughout the sector.
Our external focus continues to be coaching
and venues with core priority projects and
KPI’s being set by the organisation off the back
of the Strategic Plan and 2022 Budget.
The organisation will continue to focus on
unlocking efficiencies in our systems and processes
allowing for greater growth and more effective
audience and stakeholder engagement.
Volleyball Australia | Annual Report
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Volleyball NT
Board of Management
President:
Vice President:
Secretary:
Treasurer:
Public Office:
Development Officer:

Luke Seib
Bec Hammet
Reece Gallagher
Owen Tyson
Tarsh Parmenter
Tre Manning-Watson

After emerging from Lockdown #1 the incumbent Board
of Volleyball NT met to affect a smooth transition to a new
team that would lead our sport into 2021 and beyond.
The AGM saw the return of Luke Seib to the role of
President and with him a team of highly skilled and
experienced professionals and Volleyball Alumni to help
him steer the organisation into the future.
These new board members included:
• Bec Hammet – Vice President
• Reece Gallagher – Secretary
• Owen Tyson – Treasurer
• Tarsh Parmenter – Public Officer
• Tre Manning-Watson – Development Officer
We immediately set about defining our goals for the first
12 months.
• Increased Support for our Affiliates
• Improved Governance
Some of our Key Achievements for this period included
hosting 2 Junior Development Camps in the NT. One in
Darwin and the other in Alice Springs. It is worth noting
this was only the second development camp to be held in
Alice Springs.
We completed due diligence and saw final approval of the
RevSport platform which will become the cornerstone of
our growth strategy moving forward. Improved access to
members coupled with increased efficiency and exposure
are 2 of the key benefits for our Sport.
The Highlight for our Board was engaging a facilitator to
guide us through our first Strategic Planning session.
The draft Strategic Plan has already proven beneficial and
will become a valuable, and live document to guide us for
the next 3 years.
On court the Highlights were the 2 Junior Development
Camps. Nothing is more rewarding for an organisation
that seeing young people developing their skills on (and
off) court with the guidance of some of Australia’s best
mentors and coaches. The camp in Alice Springs was
especially rewarding and we expect to see an increase in
activity over the coming years as we continue to support
and invest in the region.
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Volleyball QLD
Board of Management
President:
Boris Georgieff
Treasurer:
Russell Egan
Members:
Vicky Andrews
Adam Pollock
Todd Rankin
Terry Rudder (to May)
Shaun Scott

Staff
General Manager:
Staff:

Key Achievements
The key achievement of the pandemic influenced year
was ‘we found a way’. Queensland’s players, clubs,
schools, associations, promoters, commercial operators,
Board and staff all getting things done. Flexibility,
resilience, patience, open mindedness and compliance
all part of the journey. The key achievement of the year
for Volleyball Queensland is the efforts of all those
individuals.

Gary O’Donnell
Jill Kelly
Susan McQuinn
Damien Searle
David Stokes
Gloria Vicario (from May)

control such as staffing or IT we are on a program of
improvement and expansion.
Through the next iteration of the Volleyball Queensland
Strategic Plan the key requirement of having ‘places
to play’ is the biggest challenge, community courts
on beach and in halls being key to unlock interest and
convert it to playing the game for life.
The possibilities of solutions in this area given the
Brisbane 2032 Olympics is particularly exciting..

Highlights of 2020/2021
With COVID forcing the rescheduling of the Intermediate
Schools Cup to be held in conjunction with the Junior
Schools Cup, Volleyball Queensland conducted its
largest indoor event with 312 school teams competing.
The Queensland Country Championships returned to the
Volleyball Queensland calendar with 43 teams enjoying a
great weekend of volleyball in Hervey Bay.
To keep the trend of record breaking participation going,
430 teams enjoyed a spectacular Beach Volleyball
Schools Cup on 50 courts at Coolangatta and to give
the participants a sample of high level beach, the
Queensland Open medal rounds were played at the
event.
The Queensland Youth Beach Volleyball Team retained
the Andy Burdin Shield, as the champion state for a
7th consecutive year at the Australian Youth Volleyball
Championships.

Current Trends
The sport is progressing excellently in Queensland,
demand is very strong across all levels whether
recreationally, in clubs, schools, development camps or
representative programs for both the beach and indoor
disciplines.
Interest in clubs forming and affiliating is very pleasing
as more ‘organisers’ are needed to facilitate the player
interest which continuously emerges from school
volleyball.
Volleyball Queensland is placing further emphasis on
regional delivery through sequencing of coach and
referee accreditation and junior camps over the next
three years across the state. Pleasingly a Townsville
affiliate Northern Monsoons has rejoined the VQ family.

Upcoming Projects
Volleyball Queensland is suffering from ‘growing pains’!
The resources we currently have available are not
sufficient to deal with growth as effectively as we may
wish. For the resources which the organisation can
Volleyball Australia | Annual Report
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Volleyball SA
Board of Management
President:
Craig Watson
Director:
Ra’ed Alaraj
Director:
Sophie Milic
Director:
Richard Stone

Staff
General Manager:
Participation Manager:
Premier Competitions & Events:
Development Competitions & Events:
Development Competitions & Events:
Social Venues & Competitions Manager:
Sports Kiosk Attendant/Administrator – Social:
Academy Intensive Performance Squad Head Coach:
Academy Talent Development Squad Head Coach:
Talent Development Squad Administrator:

OVERALL SUMMARY
“15 months’ worth of volleyball activity in 12 months” was
the headline for Volleyball SA in 2020-21. Volleyball SA
emerging from COVID lockdown in July embarked on
the ambitious endeavour to deliver a full SA Volleyball
League indoor season, every event that had been missed
in the preceding months’ lockdown and still deliver the
complete beach season schedule. This was achieved and
the team worked extremely hard with our affiliate clubs
and associations to recapture every opportunity lost
playing the sport we love. It is fair to say this undertaking
did not come without a toll and the end of the year also
saw a lot of our team rethinking life and career goals
and deciding to leave the organisation to pursue other
interests. The General Manager, Anne-Marie McAinsh has
also communicated her departure to the Board of VSA
and is working with them to support the recruitment and
handover to a new GM by December 2021.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
• Delivered every league, event and competition in the
VSA annual calendar
• Profitable year despite the set-backs and challenges
• Supported our clubs and associations with detailed
information and support documentation every step of
the way through COVID shut-down and re-opening.
• Conducted a full review of the Volleyball SA Academy
to pivot to a stronger structure to support expansion of
Talent ID and pathway programs.
• Introduced more integration of Point of Sale, website
payment system and financial systems to improve
efficiency, lower costs and redirect resource to club
development/growth activities.

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2020/2021
In such a unique year it is difficult to detail a highlight
beyond the connectedness (of the association and the
SA Volleyball League clubs in particular) to deliver the full
senior and junior SAVL competitions whilst also planning
to deliver a full beach season with one week turnaround.
The SA Open again received great feedback although
it was a scaled back event commensurate with lowered
expectation of hosting interstate players.

CURRENT TRENDS
VSA continues to work with the clubs to create local
volleyball delivery centres.

UPCOMING PROJECTS
Volleyball SA is now working on a plan to increase the
development of coaches and referees for 2032.
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Anne-Marie McAinsh
Jason Rivett
Tom Kroeger
Cameron Taeuber
Nina Mathison
Craig McAinsh
Emma Bromley
Edwina McCarron
Sam Boehm
Britt Kendall

Volleyball Tas
Board
President:
Vice President :
Members:

Stephen Ibbott
Dean Young
Rachel Kitson
Emilie Robles
Steve Thollar

Volleyball Tasmania continued to work on critical pathways
within the 2019-2024 strategic plan. The inaugural board
of directors and retained staff also worked collaboratively
with state government and the Tasmanian Echidnas
Volleyball Club to ensure “return to sport” went as
smoothly as possible.
The re-emergence of sport post “lockdown” saw a rapid
increase in new junior athletes, especially in the grade
6-7 age group. Whether it was bolstered by anime, or
just a post-COVID realization that volleyball could be an
awesome (generally) non-contact sport, this put wheels
in motion for a positive era in junior development and the
benefits that come with it.
A revised state league season, a little later than normal,
was welcomed by all affiliates and the beach volleyball
season also proceeded with a few small adjustments due
to health protocols.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
• Established key partnership with Taroona High School
to deliver a full year Athlete Development Program for
volleyball
• Through partnership with Tassie Echidnas, raised
volleyball’s profile and started to gain media attention
• Getting back on the court and normal operations after
COVID lockdown!

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2020/2021
• Schools gala day in Launceston
• High performance junior development camp for girls
• Expansion of junior development programs

CURRENT TRENDS
• Increased participation in the grade 6-8 cohorts
• Improved collaboration across state wide activities

UPCOMING PROJECTS
• Working with state government on improved sport
infrastructure
• Expanding coaching base and junior program options
• Preparing for a full-on assault for 2022 AVL
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Volleyball VIC
Board
Officer Director – President:
Officer Director:
Officer Director:
Ordinary Member:
Ordinary Member:
Ordinary Member:
Co-opted Member:
Co-opted Member:
Co-opted Member:

Paul Freckleton
Elizabeth Tupper
Brendan Fleiter
Christie Jenkins
Peter Hertan
Ian Jenkins
Elizabeth Pollock
Cori Wilder
Lyndall Hutchins

Staff
General Manager:
Geoff Rietschel (-Apr 2021)
		
Martin Stillman (May 2021-)
Accounts & Office Manager:
Lina Monaco
Member Services Coordinator:
Shannon Lennie
Events & Competitions Coordinator: Timothy Heathcote
Development Coordinator:
Scott Davidson
Technical Coordinator:
Michael Stevens (Apr 2021-)
Events & Competitions Officer:
Katherine Walton
Organisation Development Coordinator: Victoria Ellis
Facilities Liaison:
Michael Haley

At this time of year, Volleyball Victoria would typically
be recounting the successes of State League, reporting
the progress of the Volleyball Victoria (VV) delegation
at the Australian Junior Volleyball Championships,
and promoting various other events in the calendar.
Unfortunately, due to continued effects of COVID -19, VV
have incurred another difficult year due to the pandemic,
with restrictions that affect indoor volleyball we may
not be able to resume this year in full capacity and
our focus will turn to a summer and beach volleyball.
Despite the challenged of lockdowns and
restrictions throughout the year, we were fortunate
to still have small windows of opportunity to play
volleyball, all be it a very disjointed season.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS
Vicsport Child Safety Review
In 2020, VV identified a need to ensure support and
compliance with the Victorian Child Safe Standards as
a priority for the organisation internally, as well as the
support they offer affiliate members. Funding support
for this project was provided by Sport & Recreation
Victoria (SRV) with a partial contribution required by VV.
Staff from VV worked collaboratively with Vic Sport
consultants to undertake a review process with
staff, affiliates, and other identified key stakeholders,
gathering information on the current state of
adherence to and support for affiliates to address the
Victorian Child Safe Standards within Volleyball.

created role of Technical Coordinator. The Technical
Coordinator role will focus on the successful delivery
of the Indoor and Beach State Team Programs,
the Melbourne Vipers AVL, liaising with Volleyball
Australia and key stakeholders within our community.
Michael will have a focus on leading Pathways within
Victoria under the alignment of Volleyball Australia’s
Pathways Program as well as connecting local
volleyball academies and affiliates. Michael is a very
experienced volleyballer, having played and coached
at high levels including AVL, State League Premier
Men and State Teams.
• After 6 years in the General Manager’s position,
Geoff Rietschel resigned and departed VV in April.
Geoff’s contribution to the sport was invaluable and
we thank Geoff for his dedication to the role and the
successful changes he made within the sport. The VV
Board appointed Martin Stillman as the new General
Manager and Martin commenced in May. “We are
very pleased to announce the appointment of Martin
Stillman to lead Volleyball Victoria and continue
to build on the organisation’s strengths,” stated
Volleyball Victoria Board President, Paul Freckleton.
“Martin is a highly experienced and well-respected
member of the sports community and we look
forward to him bringing his skills and experience to
Volleyball Victoria.”
• Membership growth and retention despite the
challenges and disruption to play Victorians have
endured. Registration numbers are at an all time high
at VV in 2021 despite the pandemic.

Practices put in place from this review will only
strengthen our approach and strengthen the
developing child safe culture within the sport.

• VV had success at the 2021 AYBVC. Victoria won 2
Gold and 1 Silver Medal finishing third overall in the
race for the Andy Burdin Shield.

Affiliate Conference

CURRENT TRENDS

Volleyball Victoria was fortunate to be able to run
another face-to-face Affiliate Conference, we had
a great turn out and multiple streams of sessions
available to key areas including administration,
coaches, governance and more. In 2022 VV will
look to utilise the online environment to make the
conference more accessible for regional affiliates.
Strategic Plan
Our updated Strategic Plan was released from 2021
-2024, Volleyball Victoria with the support of the
Board have aligned our plan where possible to the
Volleyball Australia Strategic Plan and separated
items that required more itemised focused.

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2020/2021
• In April, Michael Stevens commenced in the newly
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Our trend will remain the same as this time last year.
The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic will ensure a
focus on growth to retention and reengagement as
we seek to bring our community back to volleyball as
we return to play. The previous years of growth have
been disrupted due to Covid-19 and the extended
lockdowns in Victoria, VV face many challenges as
we come out of the lockdown restrictions and we
return to sport. Everyone in Victoria is hoping for an
uninterrupted year so we can gather some momentum
and consistency in our regular volleyball activities.

UPCOMING PROJECTS
We are working towards the return to sport and
pending government restrictions, VV hope to deliver
the Volleyball Victoria Schools Championship in the
coming months prior to the end of the calendar year.

Volleyball WA
Board
President: Ian Phipps
Members: Mitchell Collins
Susan Diver-Tuck (-May 2021)
Joanne Fitzpatrick (Jan 2020-)
Matt Hodges
Robyn Kuhl
Ben McRobb
Beth Morris
Matthew Waddington (May 2021-)
Rachel Funch (May 2021-)

Staff
Chief Executive Officer:
Robyn Kuhl
State Teams & Events:
Jackie Tamburri
Participation & Development Manager:
Karen Wickham
Operations & Support Manager:
Ruth Gibbons (Jun-Dec 2020)
Operations & Support Manager:
Reachelle Beasley (Jan-Sep 2021)
Administration & Support:
Jacqueline Hunt
Finance & Office:
Paula Johnstone
Schools & Juniors:
Gregory Hunt (-Dec 2020)
Schools & Juniors:
Sean Andrews (Jan 2021 -)
Competitions:
Gregory Hunt (Jan 2021 -)
Marketing & Communications:
David Smith (- Sep 2020)
Marketing & Communications:
Sascha Stone (Jan 2021 -)
State Teams Assistant:
Gareth Whitehead (Jun 2021-)
Development Coordinator:
Tayla Tenaglia (Aug 2020-)
Places to Play & Administration Assistant: Tony Ashton (Sep-Nov 2020)
Places to Play Coordinator:
Paul Oldfield (Jan-Aug 2021)
Regional Development Coordinator: Brad Barclay (Jan 2021 -)

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

CURRENT TRENDS

• Volleyball WA celebrated its 60th Anniversary in 2020

• Total participation in 2020 was 160, 607 including
57, 520 using public open spaces. We experienced a
continued growth of Volleyballs digital footprint here
in WA, 210, 784 website views, 133, 287 Facebook
followers and 42, 874 Instagram followers.

• Despite the challenges of COVID in 2020 the team
still managed to deliver a full WAVL & WAVJL season
and all bar one of the Alcohol, Think Again Beach
Tour events.
• The sport went digital in 2020 during the various
COVID phases to maintain communication,
engagement with our community and the provision of
on-line education courses.

• There has been a significant trend towards ‘Active
Recreation’ / ‘Informal Play’, simply speaking playing
in your own time, with the people you want to play
with, and anywhere.

• We introduced and updated ten policies in 2020 and
continued this process through 2021.

• Mental well-being – the importance that sport and
recreation play for everyone.

• In January 2021, we filled the vacant roles of
Operations and Support Coordinator and Marketing
& Communications Coordinator. Employed a new
person to take on the Schools and Juniors role
made vacant from an internal shuffle, and created
and hired staff in the new positions of Places to Play
Coordinator and Regional (Peel and South-West)
Development Coordinator.

UPCOMING PROJECTS

HIGHLIGHTS OF 2020/2021

• Profile – Build the visibility of volleyball in Western
Australia.

• Kids Volley in 2020/2021 has experienced significant
growth, 6 programs in 2020 to 17 in 2021.
• To meet growing demand VWA developed a Junior
Program starting with just 4 programs, we will finish
the year with a total of 13.
• The City of Armadale installed a new beach court at
Novelli Reserve with four more courts to be added
at Scarborough Beach in partnership with the City of
Stirling later in 2021.

• Finalising and releasing the new VWA Strategic Plan
2022- 2025 with four core focus areas;
• Participation – capture, engage ad increase the
number of volleyball participants.
• Pathways – provide development opportunities and
support for the volleyball community.

• People – Sustainable growth through engaged,
empowered and connected people.
• Hosting the rescheduled Australian Masters Games.
• Re-engage with some of our international projects.
• Develop and launch our Volleyball WA app
(supported by a $50k grant from DLGSC).

• We introduced four Alcohol, Think Again Volleyball
WA ambassadors to the community as part of our
Healthway sponsorship.
• In 2021 we welcomed new sponsors Metro Hotel
Perth, Morley Mitsubishi, Southern Cross Austereo
(radio), APM and i-yarn (mental wellbeing).
• Commenced Sitting Volleyball programs (five
locations), with the support of sponsorship of APM
and in partnerships with City of Rockingham, Mission
Australia, Paralympics Australia and RecLink.
• In April 2021, the VWA Lead Volley Panel ran the
inaugural Lead Volley Camp at WAIS.
Volleyball Australia | Annual Report
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VOLLEYBALL AUSTRALIA LIMITED
A.B.N. 46 487 409 518

DIRECTORS REPORT

Your directors present their report on the company for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.
Directors
The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are:
Craig Carracher
Malcolm Borgeaud
Anita Palm
Kim Bradey
Grant Hyde
Ying Jiang
Kerri Pottharst
Andrew Scotford
Les Young

(retired 28 November 2020)
(appointed 28 November 2020)

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
Principal Activities
The principal activities of the company during the financial year were to administer the sport of volleyball in
Australia through:

the conduct of national and international events,

the selection, training, preparation and competition of national teams; and

the provision of opportunities for community participation in volleyball and volleyball related activities.
Objectives and Strategies
Volleyball Australia’s main objective is to inspire the love of Volleyball by fostering participation and sporting
excellence for the benefit of all.
Strategies to achieve this objective include:

Create the platform which enables Volleyball Australia and the sport to operate as a solid,
sustainable organisation

Inspire and foster a lifelong enjoyment of volleyball for participants, volunteers, coaches and officials

Inspire young volleyballers and beach volleyballers throughout Australia through the performances
of the Australian National Teams

Create events which provide significant opportunities to showcase the sport of volleyball and share
the volleyball experience
Information on Directors
Craig Carracher (LLB, Syd, University Medal; BCL, Oxon, 1st Class Hons)
President: (Vice-President 2011, President 2013)
Craig is currently a director of the Asian Volleyball Confederation, the Chair of the AVC Asian Beach Volleyball
Committee and a member of the FIVB Beach Volleyball Council. Craig was a director of the FIVB from 2013-2016
and has returned as a director of the FIVB from 2020 until present. Craig is currently on the Board of the Australian
Olympic Committee and Chairs the Culture, Nomination and Remuneration Committee. He also serves on the Board
of the Australian Olympic Foundation and its Investment Advisory Committee. Craig is a founder and owner of Scape
Student Living and previously pursued an investment and legal career working in Asia as managing partner of a
leading Australian law firm and the Australian Packer family’s private investment group, Consolidated Press Holdings
(CPH) and its various investments.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Information on Directors (continued)
Malcolm H Borgeaud (B Com (with Distinction) FCPA MAICD)
Vice President: (2012)
Chair, Audit and Risk Committee
Malcolm is an experienced CEO & CFO with over 20 years executive and board experience in public and private
companies. He has served as Chairman on State and National Committees for CPA Australia , including their
Environmental, Social and Governance Centre of Excellence providing CPA Australia and its 180,000 members with
advice and direction on current environmental, corporate social responsibility and corporate governance issues.
Malcolm played volleyball in the U20’s for Australia in the Pac Rim Tournament in 1978.
Anita Palm (B. Human Movement)
Vice President: (2013)
Anita represented Australia in Beach Volleyball at the 1996 Atlanta Olympics.

Anita has extensive experience of multi-sport events through involvement at both event, planning and bidding stages
of previous Olympics in Beijing and Sydney and the bid stages of London and Rio. This consultative work has
included work on both the Olympics and Paralympics and has been crucial to the department planning, especially in
the areas of sport from scheduling, through to entries, sport production, organisational integration and results.
Kim Bradey (B.Sc(Ma), LL.B, GDLP)
Director: (November 2019)
Kim practices as a barrister in insurance and personal injuries law at the Victorian Bar, having previously been a
partner of a national law firm. She sits on the Workcover Magistrates’ Court Users Group, and is a director of the
Essoign Club Limited. She has also had extensive experience in the administration of not-for-profit bodies, having
served as a director of the Australian Insurance Law Association for two decades and been the secretary of the
Malvern Marlins Masters Swimming Club for five years. She also sits on two Law Council of Australia committees, as
well as on the Victorian Bar's Compensation Law Bar Association committee.
Grant Hyde (BCom, ACA, FFIN)
Director: (2018)
Member, Audit and Risk Committee
Grant is a senior partner in the clients and industries group in Deloitte and in this role he oversees a number of the
major accounts of the firm. He has worked for over 30 years in Australia and the UK and has extensive experience in
mergers and acquisitions and capital raisings. Grant has previously been on the board of Caulfield South Primary
School in Victoria for 10 years and also President of the basketball committee at Caulfield Grammar for 5 years. Prior
to joining the VA Board he was on the Board of Volleyball Victoria.
Ying Jiang
Director: (2016)
Ying was a member of the Chinese women’s Volleyball team that won gold at the 1984 Los Angeles Olympics, and
then won bronze four years later in Seoul. She was also a member of the 1982 and 1986 Chinese World
Championship teams, and the team which won the 1985 World Cup.
Kerri Pottharst
Director: (2015)
Kerri Pottharst is a triple Beach Volleyball Olympian winning Bronze at Atlanta in 1996 and Gold in Sydney in 2000.
Kerri represented Australia in Volleyball for 22 years - competing with the Indoor National Team for 10 years and then
on the World Tour of Beach Volleyball until her retirement in 2005. She has been inducted into the International
Volleyball Hall of Fame, awarded Team of the Decade by the FIVB and is a member of the Australian Sports Hall of
Fame.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Information on Directors (continued)
Andrew Scotford
Director: (Retired November 2020)
Andrew has spent the past 20 years in various roles in sport including over 7 years as the General Manager of
Volleyball Australia from 2000 to 2007. This period has seen him in leadership roles at national, state and local level
across a variety of sports including Cricket, AFL and Basketball. He also has a passion about sports officiating and
continues to both officiate and coach others in numerous sports including Volleyball and Beach Volleyball.
Les Young
Director: (November 2020)
Les Young has over 30 years’ experience providing policy, governance and technical leadership and advice across a
broad range of commercial, government and not-for-profit industry sectors with a focus in homeland security and
Olympic sporting organisations. Les has led and advised numerous multi-billion-dollar complex capability
development programs throughout Australia and North America. Les’ core strength is building and leading high
performing teams that produce results and is a passionate volunteer sports administrator and governor. He has
coached volleyball at state and national representative levels for over 20 years. Les joined the VA board in November
2020.
Meetings of Directors
The number of Director’s meetings (including meetings of committees of Directors) and number of meetings
attended by each of the Directors of the Company during the financial year are:
Directors Meetings

Director
Craig Carracher
Malcolm Borgeaud
Anita Palm
Kim Bradey
Grant Hyde
Ying Jiang
Kerri Potharst
Andrew Scotford
Les Young

Audit & Risk Committee

Number
attended

Number eligible
to attend

Number
attended

Number eligible
to attend

7
6
7
6
7
6
5
3
4

7
7
7
7
7
7
7
3
4

4
4
-

4
4
-

Company Limited by Guarantee
The entity is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee. If the
entity is wound up, the Constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of $1 each
towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the entity. At 30 June 2021, the number of members was 8
(2020: 8).
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Auditor's Independence Declaration
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations
Act 2001 is set out on the following page.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

…………………………………………….
Craig Carracher
Director
Dated: 20 October 2021
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VOLLEYBALL AUSTRALIA LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
TO THE DIRECTORS OF VOLLEYBALL AUSTRALIA LIMITED

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2021, there have been:
(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001
in relation to the audit; and
(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

CBC Partners
Chartered Accountants

Ross E. Chapman
Partner
Sydney
Dated: 28 September 2021

GPO Box 1442 Sydney NSW 2001 Level 11, 22 Market Street Sydney NSW 2000
info@cbcpartners.com.au • cbcpartners.com.au P: + 61 2 8263 1000 • F: + 61 2 9262 2911
CBC Partners, ABN: 64 711 635 192 •
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note

2021
$

2020
$

Revenue

2

6,398,870

7,223,136

Other revenue

2

8,362

7,156

Employee benefits expense

(2,757,661)

(2,403,865)

Depreciation expense

3

(96,198)

(99,491)

Finance costs

3

(1,964)

(3,788)

(1,020,323)

(1,294,776)

(200,495)

(478,302)

(1,154,735)

(1,568,770)

Consultant and contract fees

(244,915)

(338,554)

Communications expenses

(172,901)

(85,911)

Other expenses

(504,228)

(737,130)

253,812

219,705

Competition/event expenses
Program expenses
Travel expenses

Surplus (deficit) before income tax
Income tax expense

1(a)

Surplus (deficit) for the year

253,812

219,705

Other comprehensive income:

-

-

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

253,812

219,705

Profit (loss) attributable to:
Members of the entity

253,812

219,705

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Members of the entity

253,812

219,705

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Note

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other assets

4
5
6
7

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets

8
9
10

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Other liabilities

11
12
13
14
15

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Provisions
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

2021
$

2020
$

665,632
385,674
52,206
207,038

530,310
396,001
52,206
274,768

1,310,550

1,253,285

283,096
128,661
3,000

294,264
67,014
3,000

414,757

364,278

1,725,307

1,617,563

416,759
45,329
345,163
1,234,887

590,661
50,309
38,220
288,843
1,302,522

2,042,138

2,270,555

84,677
32,916

18,002
17,242

117,593

35,244

2,159,731

2,305,799

12
14

NET ASSETS

(434,424)

(688,236)

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus (deficit)

(434,424)

(688,236)

TOTAL EQUITY

(434,424)

(688,236)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Accumulated
Surplus
$

Balance as at 1 July 2019
Surplus (deficit) attributable to the entity

(907,941)

(907,941)

219,705

219,705

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 30 June 2020
Surplus (deficit) attributable to the entity

-

-

(688,236)

(688,236)

253,812

253,812

Other comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 30 June 2021

Total
$

(434,424)

(434,424)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note

2021
$

2020
$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from grants and other sources
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Finance costs

6,799,636
(6,515,010)
8,362
(1,964)

Net cash generated in operating activities

8,969,456
(8,740,833)
7,156
(3,788)

291,024

231,991

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment
Purchase of property, plant & equipment
Payments for intangibles

(66,543)
-

(161,315)
-

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(66,543)

(161,315)

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Repayments of lease liabilities

(38,220)
(50,939)

77,021
(38,801)
(48,340)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

(89,159)

38,220

Net increase (decrease) in cash held

135,322

60,556

Cash at beginning of financial year

530,310

469,754

665,632

530,310

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash at end of financial year

4

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements are for Volleyball Australia Limited as an individual company, incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. Volleyball Australia Limited is a company limited by guarantee.
Basis of Preparation

Volleyball Australia Ltd applies Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements as set out in
in AASB 1053: Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards.
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001 . The company is a not-for-profit entity for financial
reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.
Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result
in the financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and
conditions. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial statements are presented
below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.
The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and
are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected
non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial
statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.
The financial statements were authorised for issue on 30 September 2021 by the directors of the company.
Accounting Policies
(a) Going Concern
Notwithstanding the deficiency of net assets, the financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis
which assumes continuity of normal business activities and the realisation of assets and liabilities in the
ordinary course of business.
For the year ended 30 June 2021, the company incurred a surplus of $253,812, and as at this date had an
accumulated deficit of $434,424 and a deficiency of current assets to current liabilities of $731,588.
The directors believe that the going concern is appropriate given the following:
- the funding support provided by Sports Australia
- the budgetary measures that have been implemented for an operating surplus in 2021-22
Should the company be unable to continue as a going concern it is unlikely that it will realise its assets and
extinguish its liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial
statements. The financial statements include no adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification
of recorded asset amounts or to the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should
the entity not continue as a going concern.

10

VOLLEYBALL AUSTRALIA LIMITED
A.B.N. 46 487 409 518

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Revenue
Grant Revenue
Non-reciprocal grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the company obtains
control of the grant and it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the
company and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably.
If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before it is eligible to receive the contribution,
the recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied.
When grant revenue is received whereby the company incurs an obligation to deliver economic value
directly back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is
recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the
contributor, otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt.
Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received.
Other Income
Revenue from the rendering of a service or goods sold is recognised upon the delivery of the services to the
customer. Sponsorship Income is recognised as relating to the financial year.
Interest Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).
(c) Income Tax
No provision for income tax has been raised as the company is exempt from income tax under Division 50
of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 .
(d) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement value.
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost, less, where applicable, accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount of plant and
equipment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down
immediately to its estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses are recognised either in profit
or loss or as a revaluation decrease if the impairment losses relate to a revalued asset. A formal
assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to Note 1(f)
for details of impairment).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost, are valued and recognised
at the fair value of the asset at the date it is acquired.
Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including building and capitalised lease assets, but excluding
freehold land, are depreciated on a straight line basis over their useful lives to the company commencing
from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of fixed asset
Office furniture and equipment
Software

Depreciation rate
10 - 33%
33%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. When revalued assets are
sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred to retained surplus.
(f) Leases
The Entity as lessee
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses if the contract contains or is a lease. If there is a lease
present, a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability is recognised by the Company where the
Company is a lessee. However, all contracts that are classified as short-term leases (lease with remaining
lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Initially, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments still to be paid at the
commencement date. The lease payments are discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are as follows:
- fixed lease payments less any lease incentives;
- variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at
the commencement date;
- the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
- the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;
- lease payments under extension options if lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f) Leases (continued)
The right-of-use assets is an initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability less any incentives
and initial direct costs. Subsequently, the measurement is the cost less accumulated depreciation (and
impairment if applicable).
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is
the shortest. Where a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Company anticipates to exercise a purchase option, the specific asset is depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset.
Concessionary Leases
For leases that have significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the Company to
further its objectives (commonly known as peppercorn/concessionary leases), the Company has adopted the
temporary relief under AASB 2018-8 and measures the right of use asset at cost on initial recognition.
(g) Financial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the company commits
itself to either purchase or sell the asset (ie trade date accounting is adopted).
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the
instrument is classified ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ in which case transaction costs are recognised
immediately as expenses in profit or loss.
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
Financial assets are subsequently measured at:
- amortised cost;
- fair value through other comprehensive income; or
- fair value through profit or loss
Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteria:
- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and
- the business model for managing the financial assets
Financial assets are classified at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ when they are either held for trading
for the purpose of short term profit taking, derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or when they are
designated as such to avoid an accounting mismatch or to enable performance evaluation where a group
of financial assets is managed by key management personnel on a fair value basis in accordance with
a documented risk management or investment strategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at
fair value with changes in carrying value being included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(g) Financial Instruments (continued)
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those which are not expected to mature
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial guarantees are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss through the amortisation process and when the
financial liability is derecognised.
Derecognition
Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the
statement of financial position.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires). An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially modified
terms, or a substantial modification to the terms of financial liability, is treated as an extinguishment of the
existing liability and recognition of a new financial liability.
The differences between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised when he holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset
is transferred in such a way that all risks and rewards of ownerships are subsequently transferred.
All the following criteria need to be satisfied for the derecognition of a financial asset:
- the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred;
- all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and
- the company no longer controls the asset (i.e. has no practical ability to make unilateral decision to sell
the asset to a third party).
(h) Impairment of Assets
At the end of each reporting period, the group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing
the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of a
class of assets, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
class of assets belong.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Employee Benefits
Provision is made for the company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within
one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Employee
benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration is given to employee
wage increases and the probability that the employee may not satisfy vesting requirements. Those cash
outflows are discounted using market yields on national government bonds with terms to maturity that
match the expected timing of cash flows.
(j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within short-term borrowings on the statement of financial position.
(k) Intangibles
Trademarks are initially recognised at cost. It is assessed annually for impairment.
(l) Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods
and services received by the company during the reporting period, which remain unpaid. The balance is
recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.
(m) Finance Costs
Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
(n) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO).
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in
the statement of financial position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash
flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.
(o) Comparative Figures
Where required by Accounting Standards comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in
presentation for the current financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(p) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements based on historical
knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events
and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the company.
Key Judgements
Key Estimates
(i) Incremental borrowing rate
Where the interest rate implicit in a lease cannot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing rate
is estimated. Such a rate is based on what the Company estimates it would have to pay a third party to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right of use asset, with similar
terms, security and economic environment.
(q) New and Amended Accounting Standards Adopted by the Entity
Initial adoption of AASB 2020-04 COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions
AASB 2020-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions
amends AASB 16 by providing a practical expedient that permits lessees to access whether rent concessions
that occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and, if certain conditions are met, account
for those rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021
$

2020
$

NOTE 2: REVENUE
Revenue
Grants
Sponsorships
Membership fees
Athlete and other contributions
Education and development
Competition and events
Government subsidies
Other revenue

Other revenue
Interest received

3,889,187
377,396
28,870
651,608
75,304
125,111
696,850
554,544

4,245,792
503,777
282,234
810,657
27,018
798,600
340,000
215,058

6,398,870

7,223,136

8,362

7,156

8,362

7,156

45,211
50,987

49,854
49,637

96,198

99,491

1,964

3,788

1,964

3,788

17,650
-

29,908
-

17,650

29,908

7,551
658,081

5,699
524,611

665,632

530,310

Government subsidies
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the company received the cash flow boost and
Job Keeper subsidies from the government which are recognised as they accrue.

NOTE 3: SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
Depreciation expense:
- Office furniture and equipment
- Right-of-use assets

Finance costs:
- Interest paid on lease liabilities

Remuneration of the auditor for:
- audit or reviewing the financial report
- non-audit services

NOTE 4: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CURRENT
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021
$

2020
$

405,693
(45,059)
360,634
25,040

357,933
(100,059)
257,874
138,127

385,674

396,001

52,206

52,206

52,206

52,206

207,038

274,768

207,038

274,768

749,305
(498,709)

682,762
(453,498)

250,596

229,264

32,500
-

65,000
-

32,500

65,000

283,096

294,264

NOTE 5: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
CURRENT
Trade receivables
Provision for impairment
Other receivables

NOTE 6: INVENTORIES
CURRENT
Stock on hand

NOTE 7: OTHER ASSETS
CURRENT
Prepayments

NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Office furniture and equipment - at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation OFE

Software - at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation SW

Total property, plant and equipment

Movement in Carrying Amounts
Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and
equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial year:
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021
$

2020
$

NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

2021

Office furniture
& equipment Software
$
$

Total
$

Balance at the beginning of year

229,264

65,000

294,264

Additions at cost
Disposals
Gain (loss) on disposal
Depreciation expense
Asset write off

66,543
(45,211)
-

(32,500)

66,543
(45,211)
(32,500)

Carrying amount at the end of year

250,596

32,500

283,096

171,715
(43,054)

116,651
(49,637)

128,661

67,014

128,661

67,014

NOTE 9: RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Leased building
Less: accumulated depreciation ROUA

Movement in Carrying Amounts
Movement in the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets between the
beginning and the end of the current financial year:

2021

Leased
Building
$

Total
$

Opening net carrying amount

67,014

67,014

Additions to right-of-use asset
Depreciation expense

112,634
(50,987)

112,634
(50,987)

Net carrying amount at the end of the year

128,661

128,661

Concessionary lease
The company had a concessionary lease that expired on 30 June 2021 for use of office space in Building 11
and Building 18 at the Australian Institute of Sport. A new lease to 30 June 2025 is currently in negotiation but
has not been finalised due to restrictions resulting from COVID-19 lockdowns. The lease is measured at cost in
accordance with the company's accounting policy outlined in Note 1(f). Without this concessionary lease, the
company's operating result would be significantly impacted.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Note

2021
$

2020
$

NOTE 10: INTANGIBLE ASSETS
NON CURRENT
Patent - Spike Zone
Less: accumulated impairment losses

3,000
-

3,000
-

3,000

3,000

140,311
203,598
72,850

290,638
158,788
141,235

416,759

590,661

416,759
416,759
(72,850)
343,909

590,661
590,661
(141,235)
449,426

45,329

50,309

45,329

50,309

84,677

18,002

84,677

18,002

-

38,220

-

38,220

NOTE 11: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
CURRENT
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Other payables (net amount of GST payable)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost classified as trade
and other payables
Trade and other payables:
- total current
- total non-current
Less: other payables
Financial liabilities as trade and other payables
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NOTE 12: LEASE LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Right-of-use assets

NON-CURRENT
Right-of-use assets NC

NOTE 13: BORROWINGS
CURRENT
Insurance Premium Funding
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2021
$

2020
$

NOTE 14: PROVISIONS
CURRENT
Provision for employee benefits: annual leave
Provision for employee benefits: long service leave

NON CURRENT
Provision for employee benefits: long service leave NC

Analysis of total provisions

264,191
80,972

219,335
69,508

345,163

288,843

32,916

17,242

32,916

17,242

378,079

306,085

Employee
Benefits
$

Total
$

Opening balance at 1 July 2020

306,085

306,085

Additional provisions raised during year

238,507

238,507

(166,513)

(166,513)

378,079

378,079

Amounts used
Balance at 30 June 2021

Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave.
The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements
and the amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having
completed the required period of service. Based on past experience, the company does not expect the
full amount of annual leave or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled
within the next 12 months. However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the
group does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these amounts in the event
employees wish to use their leave entitlement.
In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long
service leave being taken is based on historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria relating to
employee benefits have been discussed in Note 1(i).
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2021
$

2020
$

NOTE 15: OTHER LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Income received in advance

1,234,887

1,302,522

1,234,887

1,302,522

580,552

537,850

NOTE 16: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, as declared by the World Health
Organisation, continues subsequent to the company's year end. In the current
environment it is challenging to predict with certainty the expected impact of
COVID-19 on the results of the company for future reporting years.
Management and the directors are continuing to monitor trading conditions
and cash flows in order to adapt to the new environment.
No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the reporting
period that have significantly affected, or may significantly effect the operations
of the group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the
company in future financial years.

NOTE 17: OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other related parties include close family members of key management
personnel and entities that are controlled or jointly controlled by those key
management personnel individually or collectively with their close family
members.
Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and
conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties unless
otherwise stated.

NOTE 18: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the company, directly or indirectly, including any
director (whether executive or otherwise) of the company is considered key
management personnel.
The totals of remuneration paid to key management personnel (KMP) of the
company during the year are as follows:
Key management personnel compensation
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Note

2021
$

2020
$

NOTE 19: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The company's financial instruments consist mainly of cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and lease liabilities.
The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured
in accordance with AASB 9: Financial Instruments as detailed in the
accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:
Financial Assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Trade and other receivables

4
5

665,632
385,674
1,051,306

530,310
396,001
926,311

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Trade and other payables
- Lease liabilities

11
12

343,909
130,006
473,915

449,426
68,311
517,737

NOTE 20: ENTITY DETAILS
The registered office and principal place of business of the company is:
Australian Institute of Sport
Leverrier Street
Bruce ACT 2617

NOTE 21: MEMBERS' GUARANTEE
The entity is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee. If the
entity is wound up, the Constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of $1 each
towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the entity. At 30 June 2021, the number of members was 8
(2020: 8).
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DIRECTORS DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Volleyball Australia Limited, the directors of the company
declare that:
1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 6 to 23, are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and:
(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and
(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2021 and of its performance for the
year ended on that date.
2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts
as and when they become due and payable.

…………………………………………….
Craig Carracher
President
Dated: 20 October 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
VOLLEYBALL AUSTRALIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Volleyball Australia Limited, which comprises the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors'
declaration.
Auditor's Opinion
In our opinion the financial report of Volleyball Australia Limited is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001 , including:
(a) giving a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 30 June 2021 and of its performance
for the year ended on that date; and
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the
Corporations Regulations 2001 .
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s
APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial
report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001 , which has been given to
the directors of the company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the same time of this
auditor's report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

GPO Box 1442 Sydney NSW 2001 Level 11, 22 Market Street Sydney NSW 2000
info@cbcpartners.com.au • cbcpartners.com.au P: + 61 2 8263 1000 • F: + 61 2 9262 2911
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Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 1(a) in the financial report, which indicates that the Company has an accumulated
deficit of $434,424 and current liabilities exceeded its total assets by $731,588 as at 30 June 2021. As stated in
Note 1, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the company’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021, but does not include the financial report and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial report,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or other appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view and have determined that the basis for preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate
to meet the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The
directors' responsibility also includes such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

CBC Partners
Chartered Accountants

Ross E. Chapman
Partner
Sydney
Dated: 20 October 2021
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